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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2017.
Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017 was
HK$60,004,000 (2016: HK$55,493,000), an increase of 8.1% compared
to the year before. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$169,165,000 (2016: HK$61,762,000), representing an
increase of 173.9% from 2016. The increase in profit for the year was the
result of:

(1) The share of results of associates changes from loss of
HK$30,995,000 in last year to profit of HK$99,051,000 in current
year; and

(2) The increase in rental income of HK$4,402,000 from investment
properties.

Earnings per share amounted to HK13.62 cents (2016: HK4.97 cents),
while the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$3.79 as at 31st December, 2017 (2016: HK$4.09).

Dividend

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has declared the second
interim dividend of HK25 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2017 (2016 final dividend: Nil) payable
on or around Friday, 13th April, 2018 to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, 3rd April, 2018.

Subsequent to the year ended 31st December, 2016, on 25th January,
2017, the Company's board of directors’ meeting was held to resolve a
payment of special dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share amounting
to approximately HK$310,606,000 which was paid on 23rd February,
2017.

Subsequent to the six months ended 30th June, 2017, on 17th August,
2017, the Company's board of directors’ meeting was held to resolve a
payment of interim dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share amounting
to approximately HK$310,606,000 which was paid on 25th September,
2017.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

M

)

For determining the entitlement to the second interim
dividend (in lieu of a final dividend)

For determining the entitlement to the second interim dividend (in
lieu of a final dividend) for the year ended 31st December, 2017,
the register of members of the Company will be closed on Thursday,
29th March, 2018 and Tuesday, 3rd April, 2018, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for
a Shareholder to qualify for the second interim dividend (in lieu of a
final dividend), all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
28th March, 2018.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“2018 AGM")

The 2018 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 23rd May,
2018. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2018 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 17th May, 2018 to Wednesday, 23rd May, 2018
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible
to attend and vote at 2018 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 16th May, 2018.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business Review

The Group’s core businesses comprise property investment, property
leasing and estate management in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group's commercial
properties situated at Harbour Crystal Centre recorded an average
occupancy level of approximately 99% and the performance of rental
income was satisfactory.

In respect of the residential properties held by the associate (33.33%
owned) situated at The Redhill Peninsula, 13 apartments and 3 houses
have been completed for sales for the year ended 31st December, 2017,
while 3 more houses were sold pending completion. The remaining 41
houses are being launched for sale in batches in the year of 2018.

The Group's industrial properties situated at Ap Lei Chau, Hong Kong,
the Harbour Industrial Centre and the Oceanic Industrial Centre held by
the associate (33.33% owned) recorded an average occupancy level of
approximately 63% and the rental income performed reasonably due to
one of the anchor tenants in Oceanic Industrial Centre surrendering some
space upon expiration of the leases.

Financial Review
Group Assets and Charges

The total assets of the Group have decreased from HK$5,405,183,000
last year to HK$4,894,582,000 in this year. The net assets of the Group
have decreased from HK$5,090,330,000 to HK$4,703,397,000. At 31st
December, 2017, no investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong
(2016: HK$NIl) were pledged as security for banking facilities. The Group
has no bank loan, but will undergo a discussion with the bank for the
renewal of banking facilities and the bank has agreed to provide banking
facilities if necessary.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Financial Review (continued)
Group Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The total liabilities of the Group have decreased from HK$314,853,000 as
at 31st December, 2016 to HK$191,185,000 as at 31st December, 2017.
The Group had cash and bank balances of HK$520,411,000 as at 31st
December, 2017 (2016: HK$981,503,000). The ratio of total liabilities
to total assets was approximately 4% (2016: 6%). As at 31st December,
2017, the Group had no bank loans (2016: Nil) and the total equity was
HK$4,703,397,000 (2016: HK$5,090,330,000).

As at 31st December, 2017, the current assets of the Group, amounting to
HK$780,146,000 (2016: HK$994,505,000), exceeded its current liabilities
by HK$750,368,000 (2016: HK$827,282,000).

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and no related hedges and there
were no contingent liabilities.

Financial/Operational Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicator (“KPI1")

For the year of 2017, the Group set the following operational KPIs to
maintain high competitiveness:

(1) For the investment properties managed by the Group, our aim is to
maintain 10% yearly increment in the total rental income.

(2) For the sale of The Redhill Peninsula Project held by the associate
(33.339% owned), our aim is to sell one house quarterly.

Having reviewed the annual performance, these KPIs have been achieved.
The Group will keep updating its operational KPIs to adapt the market
changes.

DRMEARA




ZZ— L FF5 Annual Report 2017

FREHEGR)

EIREF MM (®)
KETHRE
“E-)N\EFEEZWT :

() BPMRERBUARS H kR EL
W% B B R BRI R BRI
AS - TR R R A A ERY
=%

2) BMEEEH2HELERBE R RIFENL
B (HA33.33%) * LATE B ATfEREAE
EMHIEE TREHE -

(3) AKEBEQRITEERKALRE - KMk
S NEA R EER -

(4) AKEFLEE LA A0 AR R
T RFRAEI -

XBRZ

EABRCEREMNEHWEMSRAR - —+
FHAHRE - FEMEEBRRIZERNE LK -
BEFEBHNEFE-— P ATEEHMNASREL
BEH - MEBEENESWABE UL IKER
ENREHAIETZTERS - ALEENEDD
FEEMERAAN  AEBBESHHE L ABEE AT
FAMALILFSEEME(HEE33.33%) 8 TRE
ZAEER - HMRAREERP L (EHH)HE
SUWAFERET -

RERR - AEBESFHERIAREINTHIR
RS - BARSIOKE RERE - RE RN
AR - AEEGEBR2ERE AR LBIMEEY
X BOREEREVMFRAS - AEEKBIR
RFHEE LB e g &R AR AR

AEEERFESIINEEEANLBERE
BRI IR B 7 SHR T o

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Future Likely Development
Objectives for 2018 are as follows:

(1)  We will continue to improve our investment portfolio through
acquisition of quality properties at attractive valuations and disposals
of under-performing properties in order to balance the demands of
short term returns and long term capital appreciation.

(2) We will be more proactive in participating in the sale of The Redhill
Peninsula held by the associate (33.33% owned), in order to boost
sales under the current healthy residential market condition.

(3) We will review our management and cost structure so as to improve
efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

(4) We will consider gearing up in a responsible manner in order to
increase our return on equity.

Business Outlook

General economic and real estate market conditions in Hong Kong
improved in 2017. Residential property prices and transaction volumes
rose significantly. The rise in e-commerce has continued to reduce upward
pressure to rents for retail space, and healthier income trends and a
rebound in visitor numbers have helped to stabilise retail rents. To capture
the buoyant residential market, the Group'’s remaining 41 houses situated
at The Redhill Peninsula held by the associate (33.33% owned) are now
being launched for sale in batches. We expect the rental income from
Harbour Crystal Centre (portion) to remain stable.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to monitor local and overseas
market conditions. With our strong financial position, the Group will
endeavour to acquire Hong Kong and overseas properties when attractive
opportunities arise in order to strengthen its investment property portfolio.
The Group will focus on maintaining a healthy growth rate in recurring
earnings and a stable financial profile.

The Group will remain proactive in business operations and continue to be
cautious in managing its finance.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and the
staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past year, to
the Shareholders for their understanding and support, and to the customers
for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2018
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as at 31st December, 2017

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

BEREmER
(FEHR)

Total gross Efr Frid a5t
ek I R SR 1S A& floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
BrEME
Investment properties
5
Hong Kong
B &H O (EMD) NERHER [GES 138,663 - 80

NBERY B IR BB I B E 38 1005% 10600%% 8,881 - 40
Harbour Crystal Centre (portion) K.LL. 10600 Commercial 30 100
100 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
AETE DO (E5) WEIMANMEE  IE &R 266,126 59 33.33
ERBEBF 11657
RS RN
Harbour Industrial Centre (portion)  ALL116 Industrial/Godown
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong
BETEDO(EMR) BWHIMALE IX85R 741,706 74 33.33
EEEBT 11657
RS RN
Oceanic Industrial Centre (portion)  AlLL116 Industrial/Godown
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong
T/a L (R D) MHER22435%  BEBAE 27,457 - 50
BB ZERER
SRAKBEHR58-645%
Queen'’s Centre (portion) I.L.2243R.P. Commercial/Offices

58-64 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (continued)
as at 31st December, 2017

BEREmER
(FEHR)
Total gross Efr Frid a5t
ek I R SR 1S A& floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
EEIZEAH 0 (ED) JEAMER295% T 134,236 10 50
JUBEHE
HEEEAH

Wah Shun Industrial Centre Y.T.IL29 Industrial
(portion) 4 Cho Yuen Street
Yau Tong, Kowloon

AL BE—HEMD) MEEpsmE EE 10,427 - 33.33
BEKE 1050%%

Redhill Peninsula, Phase 1 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential
Tai Tam, Hong Kong

L SEMGEMD) R FREEHER F=E 98,250 - 33.33
FENE 10505%

Redhill Peninsula, Phase 2 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential
Tai Tam, Hong Kong

AL BE=HEM) ME@EpEME  (EE 60,537 - 33.33
BEERE 10509

Redhill Peninsula, Phase 3 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential

Tai Tam, Hong Kong

DEREEGRAR
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The board of directors of
the Company (“Board") believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Report”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which
are detailed in this report. The Company has applied the principles of,
and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during
the year ended 31st December, 2017, except the following deviations.
The Board will review the current practices at least annually, and make
appropriate changes if considered necessary:

1. Code Provision A.5.1

For the period from 1st January, 2017 to 9th March, 2017, as
the Board comprised no Independent Non-Executive Director, the
positions in the nomination committee were vacant. The Board
considered that the failure of meeting the relevant Code Provision
is temporary in nature. Since 10th March, 2017, the Company has
complied with this requirement.

2. Code Provision I(f), Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules

For the period from 1st January, 2017 to 20th March, 2017, the
number of Independent Non-Executive Directors for the composition
of the Board had fallen below the minimum number required. Since
21st March, 2017, the Company has complied with this requirement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (continued)

3.

Code Provision I(f) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules

For the period from 1st January, 2017 to 9th March, 2017,
the Company failed to meet the requirement that at least one
Independent Non-Executive Director must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Since 10th March, 2017, the Company has
complied with this requirement.

Code Provision L(d)(iv) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules

For the period from 1st January, 2017 to 20th March, 2017, the
number of members of the audit committee of the Company has
fallen below the minimum number required. Since 2 1st March,
2017, the Company has complied with this requirement.

Code Provisions B.1.2 and C.3.3

Code provisions B.1.2 and C.3.3 of the CG Code stipulate that
the terms of reference of the remuneration committee and audit
committee should include, as a minimum, those specific duties as set
out in the respective code provisions.

Further details of remuneration committee and audit committee are
set out under this “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 24 to 29
respectively.

Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules

For the period from 1st January, 2017 to 9th March, 2017, as
the Board comprised no Independent Non-Executive Director, the
positions in the remuneration committee were vacant. The Board
considered that the failure of meeting the relevant Code Provision
is temporary in nature. Since 10th March, 2017, the Company has
complied with this requirement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"). The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman)
(resigned as Chief Executive and appointed as Chairman,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive)
(appointed on 4th January, 2018)

Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Liu Kin Sun (resigned on 2 1st March, 2017)

Cindy Yung Yee Mei (resigned on 21st March, 2017)

Non-Executive Director:

Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018)
INEDs:

Li Chak Hung (appointed on 10th March, 2017)

Choi Kin Man (appointed on 10th March, 2017)
Lisa Yang Lai Sum (appointed on 2 1st March, 2017)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in the Directors’
Report on pages 53 to 55. Other than that Mr. Lee Seng Hui, the former
Chairman of the Board, is a cousin of Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the present
Chairman of the Board, there are no family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

Board Process

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom are
independent) provided the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings brought independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group's strategy, performance and
management process, taking into account the interests of all shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Up to the date of this report, the Company has had three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his/her
independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results and other ad hoc matters
which need to be dealt with. During the year, five Board meetings were
held and the individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Audit
Committee and Annual General Meeting during the year ended 31st
December, 2017 are set out below:

HE BITERZRE
Number of meetings attended/held
BREEXE
FHZERE REZRE EUTAY Annual
EE® Remuneration Nomination Audit General
EEnA Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BITEE: Executive Directors:
ERE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 5/5 0/1
(£)(52) (Chairman) (note 2)
THIE Lee Shu Yin 0/0 0/0
(7TiEC#831) (713) (Chief Executive) (note 3)
B Edwin Lo King Yau 5/5 1/1
MR- Tao Tsan Sang 3/5 0/1
B (it4) Liu Kin Sun (note 4) 2/2 0/0
BER(it4) Cindy Yung Yee Mei (note 4) 2/2 0/0
FRTESR: Non-Executive Director:
T (E5) Lee Seng Hui (note 5) 5/5 1/1
BWIUFRITEE : INEDs:
PEIE(16) Li Chak Hung (note 6) 4/4 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
HERE(76) Choi Kin Man (note 6) 4/4 /1 1/1 2/2 1/1
1B (it4) Lisa Yang Lai Sum (note 4) 3/3 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED




ERELWE(E)

=220

EEEEF(W)

EE

FRARZEABFEZESTHEERIZERES
FEZEHARTZERERREEL

FREXEFEIARRZTREH N ERERE
FEIF R-T-\F-AEBREN -

FHEARLRZERARRZITRABRLNITE
= ORZE-N\F-ANBRER-

BRI EERTERELHEADAZRITE
F R-T-LEZA-+—ARLR  BER
L+ AREEEARARZBIINTES -

FRESEBHEALAETGIENIENTE
= ORZE-N\F-ANBRER -

FEERERFRREEEZERA AR B
FEMITES R tF=FTHBEN -

REZGRATHRERZEETIERBASEER
REE - 2FLERE 2FRTHEE  EFZ
EREFZREZHE(RREERZBE2ER) &
REKRRS - bEER - AREMEREER
MEEEE EFECHHABREZRTITRE
BEAE  YMBTRES(RAAKEEERESR
BT/ BE EEGRADTEEE 2 BEL

DHEIWIAEESIE - AR HEESEHR
A SR AR ELBRAE BRI TAR R R AR B — 2K -

ZZ—tF 53R Annual Report 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)

Board Process (continued)

Notes:

1. Attendances of the Directors appointed or resigned during the year were made by
reference to the number of such meetings held during their respective tenures.

2. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei resigned as the Chief Executive and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

3. Mr. Lee Shu Yin was appointed as the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

4. Mr. Liu Kin Sun and Ms. Cindy Yung Yee Mei resigned as Executive Directors of the
Company on 21st March, 2017, and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum was appointed as an
INED of the Company at the same day.

5. Mr. Lee Seng Hui resigned as the Chairman of the Board and Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

6. Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Choi Kin Man were appointed as INEDs of the Company
with effect from 10th March, 2017.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual and
interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/
supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms
of reference. The respective functions of the Board and management of the
Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed
and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other
Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for comment before being tabled at the following Board meeting
for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his/her close associates has a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management. Directors will be continuously
updated on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure has
been established since August 2017 to enable the Directors, in discharge
of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.




(D))

ZZ—tF 53R Annual Report 2017

LRELSREE) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EE22@) The Board (continued)
EFESEZHEEERRE Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

ERBEEERREIE  BEERLFeEAEMS  For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’

AAREEBRE 2 XFREESIN  EELRE Y attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the

EBBRENT management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

BHGHREXRRTH
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities
HEREEREFRZ
WE S REEE
Attending trainings/
REREHRER briefings/seminars/

Reading conference relevant

EERR Name of Directors Regulatory Updates to Directors’ duties
BiTES : Executive Directors:
FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei v v/

(FE)(EET) (Chairman) (note 1)
B Lee Shu Yin v

(TTiEc#E5L) (it2) (Chief Executive) (note 2)
BRE Edwin Lo King Yau v v
S Tao Tsan Sang v v
B (it3) Liu Kin Sun (note 3) v/
DR (iE3) Cindy Yung Yee Mei (note 3) v
IEMITESE : Non-Executive Director:
ZRB(514) Lee Seng Hui (note 4) v v/
BIUFRTES : INEDs:
PRI (515) Li Chak Hung (note 5) v v/
BRER(55) Choi Kin Man (note 5) v v
BB (i3) Lisa Yang Lai Sum (note 3) v v/
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei resigned as the Chief Executive and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

2. Mr. Lee Shu Yin was appointed as the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

3. Mr. Liu Kin Sun and Ms. Cindy Yung Yee Mei resigned as Executive Directors of the
Company on 21st March, 2017, and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum was appointed as an
INED of the Company at the same day.

4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui resigned as the Chairman of the Board and Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

5. Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Choi Kin Man were appointed as INEDs of the Company
with effect from 10th March, 2017.

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in August 2017
which sets out the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for
the purpose of achieving the Company's strategic objectives of balanced
diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company's business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive ("CE") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, being the former
Chairman of the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring that (i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, timely and clear information. The functions of the former CE are
performed by Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, who is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's business. Their responsibilities are clearly
segregated and have been set out in writing and approved by the Board in
August 2017.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment. This
induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Future Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials
briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be
continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep
of good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term
of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) has been
renewed commencing from 24th May, 2017, until 31st December, 2018,
except Mr. Lee Seng Hui resigned the Non-Executive Director with effect
from 4th January, 2018.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors (continued)

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible
for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions in August 2017.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required to report back to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in
the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises all INEDs. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, including Mr. Li Chak
Hung (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and
Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered
necessary. The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which was revised in August 2017 and
are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. In 2017, except one Nomination Committee meeting
was held on 6th July, 2017 (attendance of each member as set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report), the Nomination Committee
dealt with matters by way of circulation. In 2017 and up to the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee performed the works as summarised
below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at 2017 AGM and
2018 AGM;

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the renewal of
the terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors (including
the INEDs) for the period from 24th May, 2017 to 31st December,
2018; and
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and assessed the independence of each INED.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since September
2005. Currently, it consists of three members, including Mr. Choi Kin Man
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Ms.
Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company's policy if
considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are included in its terms of reference, which was revised in
August 2017 and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation
from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors only and not senior management (as opposed to
executive directors and senior management under the code provision). The
reasons for the above derivation are summarised as below:

(i)  the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;

(i) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

(i)  there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee meeting was
held in 2017 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board" of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2017. In
2017 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors (including the INEDs) for the year ended 31st
December, 2017; and

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the Directors’
fee for the year 2017 onwards.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee. Further remuneration
payable to Directors (including any service fees of the INEDs) for their
additional responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the
emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the
date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the
Company dated 17th August, 2017.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since September 1998 and
currently consists of three INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity,
the Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualification or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company's policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was revised in August 2017
to comply with code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with deviation
from the code provision of the audit committee’s responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i)  ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk
management and internal control systems; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resources and
has appropriate standing within the listed company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement under the code provision) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the
following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(i)  the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and

(i)  INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure under the code
provision) whether management has performed is duty to have effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is
not equipped to ensure that the same is in place as this could involve day-
to-day supervision and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit
Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the
Audit Committee is not a position to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced but it can check whether it is adequately resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with
its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee Meetings were held in 2017
and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “The
Board" of this report.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also

dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2017. In 2017 and up

to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as

summarised below:

®

(ii)

(i)

(v)

v)

reviewed and approval the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect if the interim results review for the six
months ended 30th June, 2017 (“2017 Interim Review") and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (“2017 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

reviewed the independent review report/audit completion report
from the external auditor and the management's response in relation
to the 2017 Interim Review and 2017 Final Audit;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the financial
reports for six months ended 30th June, 2017 and for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 together with the relevant management
representation letters and announcements;

reviewed the internal audit review report prepared by the Internal
Audit Function of the Group (“IA Function”);

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of the Related
Party Transaction Policies and Procedures, the Procedures for the
Identification and Monitoring of Connected Transactions, Whistle
Blower Policy, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information and
Policy on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control
Procedures; and

(vii) reviewed the Audit Planning Report for the year ended 31st

December, 2017 and the Proforma Independent Auditor's Report

pursuant to the new and revised Hong Kong Standards on Auditing.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established in July 2017 and currently
consists of four Executive Directors, being Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei
(Chairman of the Executive Committee), Lee Shu Yin, Edwin Lo King Yau
and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general
powers of management and control of the activities of the Group as are
vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board's decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the
operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by way of
circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking
and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Company Secretary

Ms. Cynthia Chen Si Ying is the Company Secretary of the Company. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the
Shareholders and management.

Ms. Chen is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
During the year, Ms. Chen undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update her skills and knowledge.

Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Mode Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
Information in relation to the Company or its securities.




ERELWE(E)

BEEFE 2
MEHE

RUBEH 2B T EFERRERBEAEEELR
BRI AT REEBE_T—tF+=
A=+t RLEEZHEEWBHERERE - AQFE
RMEBRAREHRE > LETEEGTMAE
Btz ERM B REEA(EPTREEEETE
AR 2 IREA R BB R AED 2 HERE
EERRMERZ ST RREEL B ERER -
AT 1EFI BT R St RS 12 - TMERIZISEEE
HEERBURAMBT®RE -

RRABIMNEZHRENIEE) - FEERTT SRHENTTZE
BEERN B ZBMRELIEELTIH -

(D))

ZZ—tF 53R Annual Report 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2017, the accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 63 to 71.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems covering all materials
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. In 2017,
the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk
of system failure, and to assist in the achievement of the Group's agreed
objective and goals. They have a key role in the management of risks that
are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition, they
should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks of different businesses and activities. The annual assessment
is performed through the completion by the relevant business units and
department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-
ordinated by the IA Function. The result and findings are reported to the
chairman of Executive Committee who puts forward the same to the
Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, which have been considered
effective and adequate.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 30(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Internal Audit

The Head of IA Function reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Audit Committee. The IA Function generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The Internal Audit Report was prepared by the IA Function and issued to
the Audit Committee and the Board for review.

Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information
("Policy”) effective on 1st January, 2013 with respect to the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Policy sets out guidelines and procedures to the directors of the
Company and relevant officers of the Group to ensure inside information
of the Group is to be disseminated to the public on an equal basis and in
timely manner. Directors and relevant officers in possession of potential
inside information and/or inside information are required to take reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards are in place to preserve strict
confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain the information confidential. The
Policy shall be updated and revised as and when necessary in light of
changes in circumstances and changes in the Listing Rules, Part XIVA of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements from time to time.
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Accountability and Audit (continued)
External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group's external auditor is set
out as follows:

mAEEEREZERE Services rendered for the Group le/foj_g
ZERG Audit services 1,200
FERBRG (BEER P HEEREERMD) Non-audit services (including review of interim results

and results announcements) 235
et Total 1,435
BARER 2 /A Communication with Shareholders
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with Shareholders. The Chairman actively participates at the
AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions from
Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, another
member of the respective committees or failing that their respective duly
appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed, at
least a member of the independent board committee) should also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

During the year, the 2017 AGM was held on 24th May, 2017. The
attendance record of the Directors at the 2017 AGM is set out in the
section headed “The Board" of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders
at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions
from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings as at the date
of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") by sending a written request to the
registered office of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the EGM
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’
meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at the Registered
Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the Articles
of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal
for discussion and be relevant to the Company's business scope.

The Board updated a shareholders’ communication policy in August
2017. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices
on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

Asiasec Properties Limited believes in delivering long term, sustainable value
creation to our shareholders. In doing so, we recognise that the choices
we make will have an impact on the communities in which we carry on
our business and we should ensure such impact a positive one. We are
committed to contributing to the sustainable development of society and
the environment, and endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our
practice and governance. The Company has adopted a Sustainability Policy
in August 2017 which covers our principles in the area of employment and
labour practices, business integrity, the environment and the community
and we shall endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our practice
and governance to contribute to the sustainable development of society
and the environment.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Company's strategy and reporting in respect of Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") issues and has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, which are put in
place to identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different businesses
and activities, including the ESG-related risks. Based upon the assessments
made by the Company's senior management, subsidiaries’ respective
management and the external auditors, the Board considered that such
systems are effective and adequate.

This report outlines the Group's sustainability initiatives and selected Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI") that are material to the Group and its
stakeholders on ESG issues for the year ended 31st December, 2017. This
report supplements information disclosed elsewhere in this annual report,
and was approved by the Board on 14th March, 2018.

REPORTING SCOPE

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide") as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT AND STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the ESG Guide
within the scope of sustainability, the below are the list of issues that are
considered to be material and relevant to the Group. The priorities are
set based on management's view as well as certain conclusions from
stakeholders’ engagement. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily
operations through meetings, events, and other communications and
feedback channels. Based on management's view, the aspects and KPls
relevant for this report’s disclosure are set out as follows:

Material and relevant issue
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2
Other relevant issues

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure
Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1, A2.3

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general disclosure,
KPI'A3.1

Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure, KPI B1.1

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure, KPI B2.3

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, B3.2
Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure

Product responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.4

Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure

All other aspects of KPI not mentioned above were concluded to be not
relevant for disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of
provisions by the Stock Exchange's ESG Guide.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Group's Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach
towards environmental issues. We endeavour to:

—  observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond
minimum requirements;

—  prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste;

- make efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials;

—  minimise the impact of the Group’s activities on the environment and
natural resources; and

—  engage our staff, customers and partners to promote environmentally
sustainable business practices and constantly re-assess our processes
to minimise environmental impact.

This report does not include the disclosure of all the environmental KPls
as they are not considered material or relevant as a conclusion of our
stakeholders’ engagement as well as management's view. Instead, we
have discussed our general approach and effort to reduce the Group's
environmental footprint in various aspects.

Emissions (Aspect A1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities and direct
participating in construction works. Emissions produced are mostly on a
"second degree” basis as incurred during occasional business travels which
is infrequent. In line with our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas
emissions, major operations are equipped with video conferencing facilities
to minimise the need for face to face meetings and keep business travelling
to a minimum. There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our
business in this aspect.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We have adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures to
enhance the efficiency in consumption of resources including energy,
water and other paper. With only 39 staff across the Group, we consume
minimum amounts of electricity and paper and with the efficient use of
such, we hope to minimise our impact on the environment while we grow
our businesses. Water consumption is not material to our business as it
relates mainly to the personal consumption of our staff or for their personal
hygiene.

Environmental protection guidelines for energy savings and reduction in
paper consumption are circulated to all staff at head office and branches.
For instance, staff are reminded to switch off lights and equipment after
work, during lunch break or during the time working outside the office and
wherever possible. Energy efficient office equipment is always preferred in
making purchase decisions. During 2017, the Company's total electricity
consumption was 55,700 kwh, a 45% reduction as compared with
101,200 kwh in 2016.

Since March 2017, electronic board paper systems have been promoted
and implemented throughout the Group, allowing our directors to access
meeting papers online anytime, anywhere with the use of portable
electronic devices, improving Board efficiency whilst saving paper.

For our major activities of property investment and property management
businesses, eco-friendly options are often considered and where possible/
appropriate are implemented in operations and maintenance works.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)
A. ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3) (continued)

These include:

to replace compact fluorescent lamps with LED lightings;

—  to replace traditional electrical lift systems with VWVF system;

—  to use environmental friendly refrigerant gases for air-conditioning
units selection;

—  to place recycling bins in the prominent place to encourage waste
separation awareness amongst our customers;

- to carry out routine maintainance of lighting, air-conditioning and
water pipe systems to prevent the lost of natural resources;

- to replace air-cool with water-cool air-conditioning system;

- to use more economical and efficient method to reduce noise, dust
and debris for waterproofing repair and maintenance; and

—  to install water efficient taps in washrooms and promoting concepts
of water conservation to our customers.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group's business has no direct impact
on the environment and natural resources.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. SOCIAL ISSUES

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4)

The Company is substantially an investment holding company and with
subsidiaries involved in real estate, property leasing and management
services. Our people are our most important assets that drive the long-term
development and sustainability of the Company. The Group’s policy on
employment is as follows:

—  observing relevant laws and regulations;

—  being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare for our staff;

- providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting
employees from occupational hazards;

—  promoting a good work-life balance for staff;
—  investing in training and professional development of our staff for the
purpose of improving their knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work;

- maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent
two way communication; and

- no child and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. SOCIAL ISSUES (continued)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4) (continued)

The Group’s employment of staff is subject to the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. The Group has no known non-compliance with the above
relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods,
welfare) need to be competitive with other peers in the same sectors and
in general exceeds the minimum as required by the relevant regulations.
Owing to the nature of our businesses, work related injuries, occupational
health issues and the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk
factors.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment
for our staff. On top of this, well-being programmes such as those
promoting a good work-life balance are regularly offered to staff. The
Group jointed the event "Walk for Nature @ Mai Po" organised by The
World Wildfund Hong Kong and encourage our staff and their families to
participate. This promotes employee engagement and sense of belonging
on one hand and enhances staff awareness of environmental protection on
the other hand.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group employs a total of 39 staff in Hong
Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. SOCIAL ISSUES (continued)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4) (continued)

Staff Breakdown
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. SOCIAL ISSUES (continued)
Development and Training (Aspect B3)

The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning in
our organisation. Our employees are encouraged to pursue work-related
advanced studies and attend seminars and workshops to hone their
skills. We support our people by providing study subsidies to facilitate the
professional development of our employees. Staff training across the Group
amounted to 37 hours in total.

Training hours breakdown

® = Male
HIERIE Y @® 7l Female
By Gender

100%
® KET
General staff

AR E 5 41%
By Grade @ ZEEET
! 5904 Managerial staff
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. SOCIAL ISSUES (continued)
Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group's general business suppliers include providers of information
technology and communication, premises, legal and other business services
as well as vendors for office supplies. These are not considered to pose
significant social risks for our business and procurement decisions are
based on pricing, suitability as well as the general reputation of suppliers.

Product Responsibility (Aspect B6)

The Group is responsible for providing a quality, safe and healthy living and
working environment to the tenants and visitors of its leased properties. We
listen for our tenants’ feedback and make continuous progress to improve
our service quality. Daily site inspections are conducted and frequent
communications with our tenants are maintained with an aim to uphold
a high standard of service quality. During 2017, the complaint rate is low
and most of the complainants accepted or were satisfied with our replies.
The Group puts the best effort to response instantly to the problem and
complaint submitted by the tenant.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. SOCIAL ISSUES (continued)
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7)

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a Whistle Blower Policy detailing situations in
which acceptance of advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning
prevention of bribery and channel for reporting suspected cases are set out
in the Code. Employees are required to undertake their adherence thereto.
Besides, internal control activities are in place to detect malpractices. Upon
receipt of any reported issues, the management will conduct investigation
and handle them in the manner set out in the Code. During 2017,
there were no known cases of non-compliance with the above laws and
regulations.

Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel for our customers and undertake the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen contributing to the community by encouraging our
staff to enroll in charity and social services.

In Hong Kong, we participated in the activity of "Walk for Nature @ Mai
Po" in November 2017. Volunteering activity was recorded proactive
participation. We also encouraged our staff to participate the Corporate
Games organised by Hong Kong government in order to enrich their
recreational life and raise their focus on health.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31st
December, 2017 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities carried
out in Hong Kong. The breakdown by the principal activities of the Group's
revenue and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended
31st December, 2017 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

Detailed review of the Group's business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (“CS") on page 6. Future development of the Company’s
business is set out in the CS on page 8. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section under CS on
page 7.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's business strategy.
The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) reviews risk-
related policies and scrutinises that management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary
for monitoring and controlling major risks arising from the Group's business
activities, changing external risks an the regulatory environment, and reports
to the Board on the above.




EFEERE(E)

EFER )
HERE

MHRREET SRR - EERRERBER
b o misERY RIREBERTSRAXEZBMA
- HAAD RN ERER - INSEER R EAMER
RRE - EERRDEFPEARFH T TETEHEX
IR 5| BUR KRR - B IR RIS K38
EEMRNEERELEET S EEEUR A
REREFAFR G N ER - MR ER 24
PR A B R R M 30(b) R EIE R
1R MR IR o

LERRSRARBIERF - AR BIEZTEX
REFSIMERHERZAIREER - AREEBRZE
TiREAEREREE RIS EREEE - 1R E 2B
oy TEBRAEDE HbIE K e & - B &k
ZH2ERR o AEBEMDEEDEREE R
LETEEOERTLET  HABXBEMLN
LERRED THEIEEE - BYEZERRTHA
HREAT BT - AEBEANEN R EHAES
EXFELREGZEGER -

FreE

WERERE - AR EHRETEN ERE
WIS 2 FRE AR E « WEARK - BH
HENETSBROTE  BEEBLSTHR
BHSEEALS RAEEZ K - HHHRR
FEHREARE -

(D)) E

ZZ—tF 53R Annual Report 2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Financial Risk

The Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk concerns that the value of an investment will change due to
movements in market factors and which can be further divided into interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. Credit risk is the risk of
losses arising from clients or counterparties failing to make payments as
contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given security or asset cannot be
traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 30(b)
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. Operational
risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing robust internal controls,
setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate
culture that the business and operating line management are fully aware of,
and responsible for, managing the operational risks of their business units
on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the internal audit team which reports regularly to the respective senior
management and the Audit Committee.

Uncertainties

The Group's business and profitability growth in the year under review are
affected by the uncertainty of the property market. The supply and demand
of the properties, government interventions over the property market price,
house price indexes and the degree of interest rates increase in Hong Kong.

DEREEGRAR

49




50

ZZ— L FF5 Annual Report 2017

EFEERE(E)

EFER )
BERERER

AEEBRNEFELLRAAERERMTR 2 REIR]
SEMN - AEBEUHREARZHIATE &S
BTREMBNRILEREEFMEZRERE
ERIRER

REBNRH N MER —RRREE - AEEZ B
BERREEEEEBHREZYE - AEBEZR
RERBIERSEARERESD - RIEY R
BEREFBALFEFES N

EAASEEHREEEZE—SERTFURA
FMEITAEZFA7ERIE - LG RERHRE ] —
£ o

BFERRER

REFEREREMA  ARECREEENA
ETHARERBREEELETATEZHME
BEER - NEAR - AEERERZERLTE
SPERERIOER

EENRE

REE 2 RENEABRRET
BB MAMER -

28 R BEM 2 #7

EXgDEMRBEBRE_ZT—HF+-_A=1—
BIEFE 2% ZRPHRESR2581L (KB R
RE) IR T N\FOA+=RA(EHR)I=K
AN TR -_E-N\FOA=R(EH )R
ARBBEREMAZ RABBRR(BIR]) -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally
responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection legislated by the local
government for managing the properties.

The Group is also committed to building an eco-friendly corporation. It is the
Group's aim to reduce the impacts of its operations on the environment.
The environmental policies of the Group include minimizing consumption
of paper and electricity, reducing waste and promoting the use of electronic
communication and storage.

Further information on the Group's environmental issues also detailed in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 37 to 47 of this report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 72 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board has declared the second interim dividend of HK25 cents per
share (in lieu of a final dividend) for the year ended 31st December,
2017 payable on or around Friday, 13th April, 2018 to the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 3rd April, 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.
Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Borrowings

The Group does not have any borrowings apart from the amounts due to
associates which is interest free and the details of which are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December, 2017,
calculated under Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622), amounted to HK$345,062,000 (2016: HK$382,886,000).

Principal Properties

Principal Properties are disclosed on the Particulars of major properties on
pages 10to 11.

Properties, Plant and Equipment

Properties, Plant and Equipment are set out on note 14 Property, Plant and
Equipment to the consolidated financial statements.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
(resigned as Chief Executive and appointed as Chairman,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Lee Shu Yin (appointed on 4th January, 2018)

Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Liu Kin Sun (resigned on 2 1st March, 2017)

Cindy Yung Yee Mei (resigned on 21st March, 2017)

Non-Executive Director:
Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Li Chak Hung (appointed on 10th March, 2017)
Choi Kin Man (appointed on 10th March, 2017)
Lisa Yang Lai Sum (appointed on 2 1st March, 2017)

In accordance with Article 127(A) of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Lee Shu Yin, who has been
appointed after the last annual general meeting and before the date of
this report, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 134 of the Articles of Association, Messrs. Patrick
Lee Seng Wei, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang shall retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of the
Company's subsidiaries during the year are available on the website of the
Company under the “Corporate Profile” section.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Executive Directors

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (“Mr. Lee”), aged 66, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in November 2016 and was the Chief
Executive of the Company during the period from December 2016 to
January 2018. Mr. Lee was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
chairman of the executive committee of the Company in January 2018.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Being an
architect, he worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than thirty years ago. He
has extensive experience in the property field. Mr. Lee is the managing
director and an executive director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited (“TACI"), a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is a cousin
of Mr. Lee Seng Hui who is one of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust (a
discretionary trust and a controlling shareholder of the Company).

Lee Shu Yin (“Mr. SY Lee”), aged 51, was appointed the Chief
Executive, an Executive Director and a member of the executive committee
of the Board of the Company in January 2018. He is also a director of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He holds a Master's Degree
in Finance from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts and
Bachelor of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. SY Lee is a
Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder. He has over twenty years of
experience in corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. SY Lee
is currently the chief investment officer of Grand River Properties (China)
Ltd., a Shanghai-based real estate investment consulting company that
he co-founded in 2003, and also an executive of PGR Asian RE Fund GP,
Ltd. which managed a property-related investment account of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of TACI, the controlling shareholder of the Company. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Altus Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. SY Lee was previously a non-
executive director of TACI during the period from March 2011 to June
2017 and an executive director of the same company during the period
from June 2017 to January 2018. He also held various positions as a vice
president and director in the Asian Equities division of JP Morgan Securities
Limited/Robert Fleming Securities while based in London, New York and
Boston and as an executive director of Goldman Sachs International in
Hong Kong.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 57, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master's Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia and is a chartered company secretary. He
had served various executive roles in several companies in Hong Kong
including as company secretary for public listed companies. Mr. Lo is also
an executive director of each of Allied Group Limited ("AGL") and TACI, the
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 53, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tao holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
financial management and China business field. He is also an executive
director and the financial controller of TACI, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Li Chak Hung, aged 53, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Li graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of
Business Administration. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 25 years' experience
in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial management. Mr. Li is
currently an independent non-executive director of SkyOcean International
Holdings Limited and Sandmartin International Holdings Limited, and was
an independent non-executive director of Alibaba Pictures Group Limited
(formerly known as ChinaVision Media Group Limited) from September
2004 to June 2014, whereas all companies are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Choi Kin Man, aged 58, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Choi graduated from Jinan
University holding a Bachelor's degree in Journalism and from University of
South Australia with a Master's degree in business administration. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in the media and public relations industry,
and is currently the managing director of Shima & Co. Limited. Mr. Choi was
previously a director of Capital Communications Corp., and had participated
in a number of public relations and communications projects.

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 51, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 2017. Ms. Yang graduated
from the University of Sydney with a Bachelor's Degree in Law and
Economics and is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England. She
is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms.
Yang is also an independent non-executive director of each of AGL and
TACI, the substantial shareholders of the Company.

Senior Management

Cynthia Chen Si Ying, aged 51, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She joined the Company in April 2011. Ms. Chen holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree in
Corporate Governance. She is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. She has more than sixteen years' extensive experience
in the company secretarial practice and has over twenty years' experience
in large well-known enterprises management, and she has worked in
Singapore for more than three years.
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Name of Former Director

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Terms of Office for the Non-Executive Directors

All the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INEDs")) were appointed for a specific term and shall continue
until 31st December, 2018 but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office.

Directors’ Interests

At 31st December, 2017, Mr. Lee Seng Hui, a former Director, had the
following interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"):

EEFAERTRA
BRACRTROR o} A ESr=Ri ]
HRRRZ#E Approximate %

of the relevant
total number of
issued shares

Number of shares
and underlying
shares interested

Egang
Nature of interests

FRIE
Lee Seng Hui

1. TREBLAFERTRELIREREREY A
Lee and Lee Trust(2#{55) Z155T A ° Lee and
Lee Trustiz Bt & EEARAR([HAEE DB
BT AEAT74.95% (BIEEHRBLEEZ @A
) BRI E A SER AR ARG 2
o MARIEE BB A E(FB)ARAA
([HaE]) (Bae SEEA74.99% e 2 /8
AR RBEBEZHEE - BEORLEPEEE
BRAR([RZ]) (A hERES48.66%HEm 2
ZENEE) - R)FBEGRAR (HEHERS
57.29%Em 2 B AT o

2. LuifrAERmBSEEE -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

938,826,898 74.95% HinkEzs
(Hiat1) Other interests
(Note 1)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang, are the
trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust
controlled approximately 74.95% of the total number of issued shares of Allied
Group Limited ("AGL") (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company through
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (being a 74.99%-owned subsidiary of AGL)
and its controlled corporations, including (i) Tian An China Investments Company
Limited (“TACI") (being a 48.66%-owned controlled corporation of APL); and (ii)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (being a 57.29%-owned subsidiary of APL).

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2017, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not
being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses listed
below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

1. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018), Patrick Lee
Seng Wei, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang are directors of
TACI, and Mr. Liu Kin Sun (resigned on 21st March, 2017) is the
finance manager of TACI which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of property investment and property
management;

2. Mr. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018) is a director of
APL which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the
businesses of property investment and property management;

3. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018) and Edwin Lo
King Yau are directors of AGL which, through certain of its subsidiaries,
is partly engaged in the businesses of property investment and
property management; and
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses (continued)

4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018) is one of
the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which is a deemed substantial
shareholder of each of AGL, APL and TACI which, through their
subsidiaries, are partly engaged in the businesses of property
investment and property management.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in
other companies by virtue of their respective common directorship or
shareholding, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that
they will act in the best interests of the Shareholders and the Company
as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm's length from, the businesses of
such companies.

Directors' Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance of which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors
or an entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the time.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or Chief Executives (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18) of the Company had any interests in or
was granted any right to subscribe in any shares, underlying shares, or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation.

Management Contracts

Save for the employment contracts, no other contracts, relating to the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions
against the Directors.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons' Interests

At 31st December, 2017, the following Shareholders had interests in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

BHERR I RAERRZHE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested

EAER FEER EERE BT

(LES5ES® (ZfEE BRinEsZ

ASRER) ZRR) i SI=32 g 4

Personal Corporate Approximate

Interests Interests % of the

(held as (interest of Httigs ES## relevant total

KRB beneficial controlled Other Total number of

Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares

REHPEREFRAR(TREZ]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Tian An China Investments Company Limited (Hrzt1) (Hizt2)
("TACI") (Note 1) (Note 2)

GHAME(ER)ERAR([HAHE]) - 938,826,898 - 938,826,898 75.64%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (H7:23) (Hiz24)
(Note 3) (Note 4)

HEREERAR(MasE]) - 938,826,898 - 938,826,898 75.64%
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (Hists) (Hiita)
(Note 5) (Note 4)

Lee and Lee Trust - 938,826,898 - 938,826,898 75.64%
(Hrite) (Hizt4)
(Note 6) (Note 4)
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
(continued)

Notes:

The interest was held by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Advance Growth Investments Limited (“Advance Growth"), Autobest
and Advance Growth are wholly-owned subsidiaries of TACI. TACI was therefore
deemed to have an interest in the shares in which Advance Growth and Autobest
were interested.

These duplicated parts of the interests of APL.

APL owned approximately 48.66% interest in the total number of issued shares
of TACI and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which
TACI was interested. The interests include 930,376,898 shares held by TACI and
8,450,000 shares held as holder of securities by Itso Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (a 56.89%-owned subsidiary of
APL).

The figure refers to the same interest of APL in 938,826,898 shares.

AGL owned approximately 74.99% interest in the total number of issued shares of
APL and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which APL was
interested.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, a former Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee
Seng Huang are the trustee of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust.
The Lee and Lee Trust controlled approximately 74.95% of the total number of
issued shares of AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and was
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which AGL was interested.

All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2017 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group, excluding associated companies,

employed 39 (2016: 42) persons, all (2016: all) were employed in Hong

Kong.

In addition to basic salaries, employees in Hong Kong are provided with

medical insurance and some of them are included under a defined

contribution provident fund scheme and mandatory provident fund scheme.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Save for the Company's purchase of its own shares on the Stock Exchange

as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year

ended 31st December, 2017.

et R ERE
BERBRERE (HIRxEASZAT)
EIfEA#E Purchase consideration Aggregate
Number of per share consideration
B A RA shares BaE RIEE paid
Date of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest (before expenses)
BT BT BT
HK§ HKS HK$
—Z—tFNAT+NR
19th September, 2017 500,000 1.97 1.95 983,390
“Z—tFNA-TH
20th September, 2017 172,000 1.99 1.97 341,280
—ZT—+FNAZ+AHA
25th September, 2017 500,000 1.99 1.98 994,730
“T—tFNAAZ+RAE
26th September, 2017 198,000 1.99 1.99 394,020
#Et
Total: 1,370,000 2,713,420

DEREEGRAR

61




62

ZZ— L FF5 Annual Report 2017

EFEERE(E)

A

EER

AARBMNEHFEKFZLEERER - BEAAX
REITERMZ CEBTATRZEARSENEEES
WEEI2EEFI6H °

R RBFRRE

R-Z—+tF—A—RE-_Z—+FHA+HB
AR - RAFIREERTE LM AR BIZE8.08(1)(a) 1547
EZREABIFREBIABATIFEEARGTEE
IRMD 2 EL25%) - BERARER @ IRARF
AUBEZ AREMIRARRESAE AR
AIE#E EMRAETRE 2 RAARISRE -

23 il

BERGEER BN EBA ([ BER ] EBREAR
FlzZBE BT —tFLARNERER - &
FERBEARRELZEBGZEBRRERER
- -BAERS TR ) AARBZZRE
Bl BT —tEFEARAREY  NEFES
BEHER 2RI ZER - WERBEEARRR TER
RBFRGERFRLE -

RAMBHRARYMESLZ  HCHIESER
YEERBRITIBRRAFAG LRENZE -

EEEEW
E
FrifE

HE —ZE-N\F=H+mMmA

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 36.

Sufficiency of Public Float

During the period from 1st January, 2017 to 16th May, 2017, the Company
did not fulfil the minimum public float requirement (i.e. at least 25% of the
Company's issued shares being taken by the public) as set out under Rule
8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 6th July, 2017. The Board, with the recommendation from
the Company's Audit Committee, has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”) as the auditor of the Company with effect from 6th July, 2017
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC and to hold office
until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte who
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

—

(formerly known as Dan Form Holdings Company Limited)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asiasec Properties
Limited (formerly known as Dan Form Holdings Company Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 72 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31st December, 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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ARERER
Key audit matter

RRMEZGE

Valuation of investment properties

HRREMELEZERYFAVBTRREEMEBER - &
ERREMEZHEARREERESBRAABER SR ZH
B R RRRRERER -

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgements associated with determining the
fair value.

WG APERERMF1AEE X BEEZREWEE
URAPBERES A % ILEEMREER  R-F
—+F+ - A=+—H5HE/A1,326,939,000/5 T - REE—
T—+F+-_A=Z+—BLEEE  BEWEZAAEBELM
46,295,000/ T A B2 A FERR

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties which
represent commercial, residential, industrial properties and
carparks, and are located in the People’s Republic of China
and Hong Kong amounted to HK$1,326,939,000 as at 31st
December, 2017. During the year ended 31st December,
2017, the change in fair value of the Group's investment
properties amounting to HK$46,295,000 was recognised in
profit or loss.

BEREZFABREMETISE B B XEE ([FHEE ) ETT
ZIEERAAEBEETE - RERERSREEBHB 2 ETE
EERILTZHARE - SEARKREE - ERKEE RER
Bz TSEAES -

All of the Group's investment properties are measured at
fair value with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer").
The valuation is dependent on certain significant assumptions
and key inputs that involve management's judgements,
including term yield, reversionary yield, and market rent of
individual unit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BMRERPTEEMRBERERZAE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAEMHEIREMEZHEZRFEEE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of
investment properties included:

. FHERHEED Z B E S ~ BN RFEILE

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

< ERFEEGEBRENRDE  METS KA - HE

Pk ERRR - EMBA ARG REES
A
. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and

methodologies, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

c FHETTRRE 2 IDERBRRZA B + R

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodologies
and assumptions to industry norms; and

c REZMEDETENND  BBULBRERFE2ER
RS8R - FHEERE R AR ARA 2 T ER AR
R RIENM -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
to entity-specific information and market data based on
our knowledge of the property markets.

DEREEGRAR

65




66

B BEN RS (1))

= (S (V)

ZZ—+HFF5, Annual Report 2017

AR E X EIE ()

ARERER
Key audit matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BMRERPTEEMRBERERZAE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

SRETHHESMRENF LTRERFEF(THHESMEEMELHTRBEFES )2 HGE
Valuation of investment in unlisted equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS

unlisted equity securities™)

mEREEAHEESREENIF LTRERAEZE S AABEY
RERFE  BESHEGEARNEERESEBAABERY
R HAEKFRARBREZSE

We identified the valuation of AFS unlisted equity securities
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgements
associated with determining the fair value.

AEERE —HEEREVERET S BAAHEECHEE
ZIEEM AR B D Z ARKE - BUNERA I FSREK M =E 18P
# BEEZAHLESHEEANIELTRERAFZESFN =
T—+F+=-A=+—HEEAE38,798,000/ T - REZE—
T—+F+_A=+—HLEFE  EHEEmEENIELT
WERAZSFZ AR EEREIN,503,000/8 T E 2wk es
NEER ©

The Group holds 5% equity interest in an unlisted company
which is principally engaged in property investment and is
classified as available-for-sale financial assets. As disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group's
AFS unlisted equity securities which are measured at fair
value amounted to HK$38,798,000 as at 31st December,
2017. During the year ended 31st December, 2017,
the change in fair value of AFS unlisted equity securities
amounting to HK$1,503,000 was recognised in other
comprehensive income.

BEEEzAHHEeRmEENI ETREBRABSAAREBEDD
DEFHENET 2 MERARBEEE - HEDE - GHEMA
ZEBEBRRRIZHABIE ZFHIBNGREMBRRMEI0(0)
BE - MEKENSREEEHS A TEERRRREIEHA
2g - BRARKER  ERKER - @R ELzmEEVE
& RADBHTIE

The fair value of the Group’s AFS unlisted equity securities
is determined with reference to the valuation performed by
the Valuer. Details of the valuation techniques, significant
assumptions and key inputs used in the valuation are
disclosed in note 30(c) to the consolidated financial
statements. The valuation is dependent on certain significant
assumptions and key inputs that involve management'’s
judgements, including term vyield, reversionary yield, market
rent of individual unit and minority discount rate.

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

BAERF A REESREENIF LTRERAEF ZHE
22

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of AFS
unlisted equity securities included:

c FHERTRAD Z BSE D - RE N RFEIML

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

c AR EEN 2 EBIENIVE - MEMS KRR - HE
RN ERMR - REMAZERA BRI TR
AR

0 Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

o BEBRANMEXEFEM B - FEAREESRE
ENFFEMREBRAEFTERBZ TEARBREE
R

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology in
the valuation of AFS unlisted equity securities with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialist; and

c BRI BERFENRTSEE - fHEEIRE N4
RN TR A BB A BB BB MARENE
EMiZBOFTER A 2 DB 1K o

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
and inputs adopted by management and the Valuer
by comparing to entity-specific information and market
data and with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialist on minority discount rate.
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REFXER
Key audit matter

FERBEATZHES
Valuation of interests in associates

HRE R QR 2 BREASERNRA P RRALHE —EEH
B EEHEMEAMNEERSEEEERRBE QR ZY
EEREERL S REMBERRMEZ AREZERFENS
BRERELER -

We identified the valuation of interests in associates as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgements associated with determining the
valuation of the associates' investment properties which has
contributed significantly to the carrying value of interests in
associates.

BUR AT EBRARMFE 17 RIZG)AHE BE£EZIE
REMEZEEERMERENB L RNAREZN T —tF+=
A=+—B:HE%2,724,401,000/8 70 ' thRNEBBEEL
569% ©

As disclosed in notes 17 and 33(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s associates which are
principally engaged in property development and property
investment amounted to HK$2,724,401,000, representing
approximately 56% of the Group's total assets.

AE RS R R RERIR Z BRI AR - IR BRI S
MABEBEREMEEANSETRAE  TRHRNRENEAARE
BERPMELET G ERRZ(GE - EREBRIBT 2
ERAE - WHEBEE TEERRRIEHARIE - 2EHESK
wmE - BROBERLEREL THEMES -

The Group's interests in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. In determining the carrying value of interests
in associates, management has recognised its share of
results of associates which is mainly contributed by share
of the change in fair value of investment properties held by
the associates. All of the associates’ investment properties
are measured at fair value with reference to the valuation
performed by the Valuer. The valuation is dependent on
certain significant assumptions and key inputs that involve
management's judgements, including term yield, reversionary
yield and market rent of individual unit.

ZZ—tF 3R Annual Report 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BMRERHIEERBERERZAE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAERRFHER B 2 ARl 2 m c FHE Z BB -

Our procedures in relation to evaluating valuation of interests
in associates included:

c HEEREYHEARRENSHRESERE

. Assessing the appropriateness in accounting for
interests in associates adopted by management;

c FHERHRAD Z BSE D - BE N REFEIL

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

. BT EE 2 MEBIENTE - METSCRHA - HE
R ERRR - HEMAZARHERE N EEE
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodologies, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

c FHETTEREB 2 IDERBRZ AR + R

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodologies
and assumptions to industry norms; and

© RERMEDETSHAE  EBULBERESEZER
i8R - FHEEEE R AR AERA BB AR
Bz BB -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
to entity-specific information and market data based on
our knowledge of the property markets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2016 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those statements on 10th March, 2017.

Other Information

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.




B BEN RS (1))

AN B IZ AR B WS MR BAIED
Ess

B B IR RBEEE L ARHIFE 4051645 E
MEBRERES T FERNKEF AR B
EEAHE RIS A IBRE - W HAFHA M
ERMZEERE - RATERABRENAERR
EAEMALE FRABREREE - SERER
BKFHRE - ETRERBRKEEETERD)D
EITNET  ER - EAERRATFERBER
B o SHARBRIL AT LA B BRAF S ER AR B RE - IR A IR
EHEMEBERERA Y EERa M BRER
ERERBHBREAMELNRERTE © NBH
EEE AR BRI AT AR ME BN ©

ERBEE BB ERETRANBIED - HIE
AT ERAE - REFERIEREE - TPIF

© BRI RFHEEREGEFRERMEBGRA M
BREESAERBANRLR « &R R#T
BHEF AR ZERR - A RERFE R
EENEDRE  EREMERNERE - i
REGEFATBE S R BER ~ 1R - BEER - &
fRER A 3% B A BEDEHIE ISR - ELtRees
BRRAGEME A EAHRRA AR SR
REEFEIRN AR M EHNE AR A AR

LA
oo
22

o

TR EREH AR R R ERIES] - PARRGHEE K
BZRERF  HEYSEEHYE BREREES
MBMIEERER

+  FHAESEARASHEEROREERIELE
FHEET MR R BN A RIE -

()

ZZ—tF 3R Annual Report 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Wong Kuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2018
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BE—F—tF1-A=1T—HILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

—Z—t%F AN
2017 2016
B &E FET FET
NOTES HK$°000 HK8'000
Yezd Revenue 5 60,004 55,493
HAA Other income 6 5,725 5,323
HAbFzm K& B Other gains and losses 7 1,552 10,152
e REm Rent and rates (1,461) (492)
BFERE Building management fees (6,326) (6,113)
BEXA(BEEEHE) Staff costs, including director’s
remuneration (13,660) (22,026)
e RN Depreciation and amortisation (2,165) (4,195)
e RIRE Repairs and maintenance (940) (807)
Hih Rz Other expenses (5.472) (15,206)
Rt ARBWEZ AR EES Operating profit before change in fair
B4 2 g A value of investment properties 37,257 22,129
BEMEZ AR EZE) Change in fair value of investment
properties 15 46,295 85,802
iyl Operating profit 83,552 107,931
FEIGEE & DRI Share of results of associates 99,051 (30,995)
B 250 A A Profit before income tax 182,603 76,936
Frisfisz Income tax expenses 8 (13,438) (15,174)
REZ m A Profit for the year 9 169,165 61,762
b7/ &AL
HK cents HK cents
FRRE T Earnings per share
HK Basic 12 13.62 4.97

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

—Z2—+tF —T—RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
RERZ @M Profit for the year 169,165 61,762
Hip2EWRES(BA) Other comprehensive income/(expense):
TEENAEE A ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
BhAH Surplus on revaluation of
—THE T RIEEY) — Leasehold land and buildings 60,815 553
— bR — Land use rights 9,015 1,518
69,830 2,051
HERHBZIELEMSHEE Deferred tax effect on revaluation (4,856) -
64,974 2,051
BE1E RIRE B D AR R 1 a AR A Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
AHEESREE AR EZE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets 2,152 892
WEREAR Currency translation differences 719 (1,131)
2,871 (239)
AEEHEMEEWE - BEE Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 67,845 1,812
RNEE 2 H W B Total comprehensive income for the year 237,010 63,574
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REMBERRAE

R-F—tF+ZFA=1—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31st December, 2017

—E—t%

—m

—= /\
2017 2016
k=g FETT FET
NOTES HKS000 HK$'000
HE ASSETS
JERBDRE Non-current assets
W - W R Property, plant and equipment 14 3,647 82,096
"EMHE Investment properties 15 1,326,939 1,121,881
T3 A% Land use rights 16 10,151 22,755
REEE N T 2 Interests in associates 17 2,724,401 3,136,800
L ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 49,298 47,146
4,114,436 4,410,678
RENRE Current assets
FEUGRIE « TANARR - iR Rk Debtors, prepayments, deposits and
H At FEUGRIE other receivables 19 8,783 8,579
FEME X Loan receivable 20 28,235 -
JE LB 8 N BIBR 3R Amounts due from associates 28 222,717 3,925
AIER B AT 1S Income tax recoverable - 498
IR R PR 1R = 1 A B &7 Non-pledged time deposits with original
Z EHTFR maturity of over three months 21 73,323 151,076
RekReFE Cash and cash equivalents 21 447,088 830,427
780,146 994,505
HEE Total assets 4,894,582 5,405,183

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED




REeEMBRRE(E)

R-F—tF+ZFA=1—H

()

ZZ—tF 3R Annual Report 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

at 31st December, 2017

—Z2—+tF —T—RF
2017 2016
s TFHET FET
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
#a EQUITY
A& Share capital 22 681,899 681,899
15 Reserves 4,021,498 4,408,431
s Total equity 4,703,397 5,090,330
af&| LIABILITIES
EREBALE Non-current liabilities
FEREFTSHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 23 161,407 147,630
mENA R Current liabilities
FERTFRIA R FERTE A Creditors and accruals 24 26,940 26,471
JE B & A RIAR RN Amounts due to associates 28 1,288 139,823
FERTETISBE Income tax payable 1,550 929
29,778 167,223
HaE Total liabilities 191,185 314,853
HESRAR Total equity and liabilities 4,894,582 5,405,183

75

HERETREZE 151 A ERAMBRREN S
E-N\F-AtHBEREESRENRERER
YH THIIEERREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 151 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14th March, 2018
and are signed on its behalf by:

R E Rt
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
£ £
Director Director
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FeREnR

BE—F—tF1-A=1T—HILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

RE nx ER
2.3 Efufkin Efuthin REEE RERH 288
(Hiat)
Investment Property
Share revaluation revaluation Exchange Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
(Note)
TET FET T FET FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
RZZ—"E—A—H AtlstJanuary, 2016 681,899 31,939 6,393 (6,050) 4505477 5,219,658
FRER Profit for the year - - - - 61,762 61,762
EREETORESEY Change in fair value of land
Rt ifE g use rights and leasehold land
and buildings - - 2,051 - - 2,051
SEAEHESH  Changein fair value of available-

BEIRRE for-sale financial assets - 892 - - - 892
BEERRE Currency translation differences - - - (1,131) - (1,131)
AEEEEN Other comprehensive income

(BR)@s (expense) for the year - 892 2,051 (1131) - 1812
AEERENG Total comprehensive income

(BR)@R (expense) for the year - 892 2,051 (1,131) 61,762 63,574
THZF—RAFE  Diidend relating to 2015

RE(Hit13) (Note 13) - - - - (186,364)  (186,364)
RA7 B Repurchases of shares

(Hfit22) (Note 22) - - - - (6538) (6,538)
RZT—RE At 31st December, 2016

+-RA=+—H 681,899 32,831 8,444 (7,181) 4374337 5,090,330
FRRER Profit for the year - - - - 169,165 169,165
BERMAETHREEY Change in fair value of land

R Lt{E A use rights and leasehold land

and buildings - - 64,974 - - 64,974
B ESREE Change in fair value of available-

ZONnE for-sale financial assets = 2,152 - - 2,152
BEERRER Currency translation differences - - - 719 - 719
AEEZMERELE  Other comprehensive income

for the year - 2,152 64,974 719 - 67,845
AFEE2EMWEEE  Total comprehensive income

for the year - 2,152 64,974 719 169,165 237,010
FBE@=-Z—/"F Dividend relating to 2016

RE(Hi213) (Note 13) - - - - (310606)  (310,606)
SHEBE-FT—+F Diidend relating to 2017

RE(H213) (Note 13) - - - - (310606)  (310,606)
R EEE Repurchases of shares

(Hiz22) (Note 22) - - - - (2,731) (2731)
R_E—+F At 31st December, 2017

+-A=+-A 681,899 34,983 73418 (6462) 3919559 4703397

i DEELRERKRAAIYEREGREECR
R E R BAR AR EMEERERA - HE
B TS BN ENEHTIABER -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

Note: The property revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising
on the revaluation of the corresponding properties that have been recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such items will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

—2—+tF —T—RF
2017 2016
FET F#ET
HKS$'000 HKg'000
BEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 250 B A Profit before taxation 182,603 76,936
R Adjustments for:
e RE#E Depreciation and amortisation 2,165 4,195
YEEE 5 (R 2 ) B 18 Net exchange (gain)loss (1,605) 1,868
HERETHEDE - BE R Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B ot equipment 53 635
At E SR EETH Write off of available-for-sale financial assets - 220
AR Write back of provision for doubtful debts - (16,147)
BREMERARBEZEE Change in fair value of investment properties (46,295) (85,802)
FEIREEE N RIS Share of results of associates (99.,051) 30,995
BB M A Dividend income (1,500) (1,500)
RITH B A Bank interest income (4,706) (5,303)
B LS WA Loan interest income (877) -
HEECEHBA EBREN Operating cash flows before working capital
changes 30,787 6,097
FEUGRIE ~ TANARRK - ke Kk Increase in debtors, prepayments, deposits and
HAh e Y I SE AN other receivables (204) (441)
JE R TE K pEET B AIE AN CRL) Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals 469 (505)
KELEEEBZREN Cash generated from operations 31,052 5,151
B EBAEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (3.398) (1,483)
REBERBZR&RE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 27,654 3,668
BERY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEWE - WM NR Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 562 294
BEYE - WK Purchases of property, plant and equipment (40) (1,115)
BEAHNESREE Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets - (190)
BTER Loan advanced (28,235) -
HRITREMA Bank interest received 4,706 5,303
ERA S WA Loan interest received 877 -
R B RMERARZ Distribution from court in relation to the
WE D B PTiS liquidation of a then subsidiary - 16,147
BN BN Repayment from associates - 126,890
FREEER RN EE=1E A Placement of non-pledged time deposits
B H 2 EREFER 2 A with original maturity of over three months (103.401) (230,791)
FRYEEEIR R AR B =1 H Withdrawal of non-pledged time deposits
2 HIZ E B 2 HE AR with original maturity of over three months 181,154 139,744
REFHEESREE Y Dividends received from available-for-sale
AR BN financial assets 1,500 1,500
REBE QR ZREWA Dividends received from associates 154,123 26,000
RERARBZRLSE NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 211,246 83,782

DEREEGRAR
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FEaRaREx(#|) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
—Z2—+tF —T—RF
2017 2016
k=g FET FET
NOTES HKS"000 HK$'000
MEXE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
&1 Bl &5 Repurchases of shares 22 (2,731) (6,538)
BEARE Dividend paid 13 (621,212) (186,364)
PNEL A= FNCIE- 5 Advance from associates - 122,837
ARRERBEZERBE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (623,943) (70,065)
ReRBEE&FERAR NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
(D )IBPE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (385,043) 17,385
REMZHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HeSEEH BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 830,427 815,161
SIERRENEIHE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES 1,704 (2,119)
REXRZHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BR&SEEE AT END OF THE YEAR 447,088 830,427

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED




REMBHRERRE
BE—E—HF+=A=1—AILEE
1. #EE

AR A—BEBEIMULZARLETAR
NA] - HRHAEBHE RS AR AR ([
RFET]) £ oo Hi%E MR 2§/ Autobest Holdings
Limited (AR B A RAFS MR ) - A HARER
REARRFBIREGR AR (REBEMK LR
RRBEZZFT ET0) o AND R R st JrEN =
BN AFE R ATER —ETRIEE

ARABREMBRR (S AEE])) 2 E2XHK
RYMERE  WMERERMEERE - RAMBER
RABBER (BT ES  TAARRRZY

BeR -

BEARARRA-_Z—+FA A TMBEET
ZIREGAF RS BB 2 FRIRESR - ARAIH) R
X & @[ Dan Form Holdings Company Limited |22
A Asiasec Properties Limited | K2 77 324 78 i [ £,
ERARAR IS A EEMESR AR ] - EiE
BRZT—EFNANBER -

2. AR BRI B EMBRE
ERI([BETBHHREZER]])

REFEEBNERZFEMHREENETE
RAFE  AEEEBRERTIHEE ST

RE([BEEGTMAE )BEMZEBMBERELE
AIZERTA -

nii)

palll3

B ERER wKEatEl
EVEACTIRN

ARG ER AR B R RERIE IR
EAPLACTIRS BE

ERUHHRERED —T-NEE_T—RFA
FE125RIEFTA 2 FEBGE— &

ollr’ =

—Z—tFF3R Annual Report 2017 /9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

1.  General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its securities are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Autobest Holdings Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate parent is Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Stock
Exchange). The address of the registered office which is also principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) are property investment, property leasing and
estate management. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24th
May 2017, the English name of the Company was changed from “Dan
Form Holdings Company Limited” to “Asiasec Properties Limited” and the
Chinese name of the Company was changed from "“FHEiZER B R A F]" to
"SR EHEBPR A R)". The change of names took effect on 9th June, 2017.

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

DEREEGRAR
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the above amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition,
the amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if
cash flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or
losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items
is provided in note 31. Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the
prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 31, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments!

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments2

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions!

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
with HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
Long-term interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle2

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021

DEREEGRAR
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI"). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies

as at 31st December, 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the

following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Debt instruments classified as loan receivable carried at amortised
cost as disclosed in note 20 and unlisted club debentures carried at
fair value as discloses in note 18: these are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Accordingly, these financial assets will continue to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9; and

Unlisted equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets
carried at fair value as disclosed in note 18: these securities qualified
for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however,
the fair value gains or losses accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve amounting to HK$28,748,000 as at 1st January,
2018 will no longer be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, which is different from the current treatment. This
will affect the amounts recognised in the Group's profit or loss and
other comprehensive income but will not affect total comprehensive
income.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be measured

on the same bases as are currently measured under HKAS 39.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)
Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated
amount of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at 1st January,
2018 would be slightly increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on debtors. Such further impairment recognised under expected
credit loss model would reduce the opening retained profits and increase
the deferred tax assets at 1st January, 2018.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for goods and services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (continued)

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, that is when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application the HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has recognised the land use right for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result
in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements
in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
received of HK$12,750,000 as rights and obligations under leases to
which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

Other than as described above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and financial position of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments, that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment’, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.




RaMBERMEGR)
BE—F—+tF+=A=1—ALEE

3. BE

I8
bl 2

=TI ZR (48)

i

FeRERRER
RAMBBREEARTRBARTEH 2 EE
NEMBRRZHBEHREK - RRFRTHERT
AT ER{SHE Il -

B EDITERED

- BR2EEREFNEBESHERESE
Bl &

1

HESERBRIER LM =ERHRES 2 —18
RZPHBEE(  AEEBEFTHERTEH
WE AT -

H—EMBARNEN  HHEASEHZMER
AEA SRR YRAEEREHZHNER
AIMIEFIRRE AR IE - HERHRFERATRE K H
Em—ﬁwgﬁﬂ'ﬁWA&ﬁiﬁm$%E%
Tﬂ%ﬁ%tﬁi$ﬁgﬂtiﬁf*ﬁiﬁ
rEIEEE

WEFE - WEA
FEHEBRENE

BlZHBEHRREELTE - U
Eﬁ-I-B( _ﬁ

ERAREREZRNMBERENEERAR

A BRRASRENRGABERS
i -
REEATZES

il MK '\

BRERRNIEAGEHEAEARENZEE
Eﬁ%%ﬁm B2 EEIRE T M5 R EEK
® PR SRR B % FBR

o

.
IDJ

—t&FF K Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. The associate uses
accounting policies that differ from those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have been
made to conform the associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associates other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such as
a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Rental from investment properties

Rental income from properties leased out under operating leases is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Estate management fee
Estate management fee is recognised when the services are rendered.
Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights
to receive payment have been established.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual value over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land
Buildings

Over the unexpired lease term
30 to 50 years

Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixture 20%
Motor vehicles 20-25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and its fair value
of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant property revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation or both.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair value. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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ZZ—tF 3R Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property, calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Land use rights

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold
interests in land are accounted for as operating leases.

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interests in land are accounted
for as operating leases and are stated at cost and release over the lease
term on a straight line basis.

Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as available-for-sale financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.




e M ERMEGE)

BE—F—tF1-A=1T—HILFE

3. BEGTTBERGM)
ST A (W)
LHEEE)

AHRHEZ 2HEE

AEERBEZBRABLRDBERTHEESRE
B ZFEFREBREPRRAAEEFE - &
MEBABENTHEEEREREEMNREE
SHABRMNBEE - ANIBRPHER - AT
&R AR B 2 BB S 5= [ TE A W R A B
HERHEER - IRHEZeREEREE M
FPREM2EKRER R RFNEGHRFEOR
B - ERERHEIREER/RE - BERFR
EfRHEREZRPRANBEEENRERS

B R EWHR

ER RS FRTIIENER TS RENRE EE
HAEENRZIETESREE - RERER
% BEXRERSA(REE S MM R -
FEWE TR - B R RRR - EIERRNER=E
ARz EFERMRE MRS EE)HRAER
MR IRE R AREA D EEREBEAR

EREERE

TREE(BEBRSRANBEREZSREER
SMERBEMRFIEREARETR - EREE
REEBEBBRTEGFARRSRERANE X
ERZEREEREE —RAZHEFMZE
FEFRRATRE -

RAHHERAREMNS @ ZAREZAAEE
RIESHFE THREERKAE - AR IEREZFE

B o

ollr’ =

ZZ—tF 3R Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors
and other receivables, loan receivable, amounts due from associates, non-
pledged time deposits with original maturity of over three months and
cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of debtors and other
receivables, loan receivable, amounts due from associates, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade creditors, other creditors, accrued
operating expenses and amounts due to associates) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(“foreign currencies”) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency that are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases are recorded in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the “profit before income tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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4. THEEMMAT ZEEZRIR
RS Y SR (MRS AL )6 - B
BHAEB BRI IRRE 2 AER B2 RE
R LIRS © FifE 2 fhEt AR

R TIABEZR R EMERSEEc ARRE
% BRERAREZEEAAER -

ET RABBERR A EEERERN - WE S5

bRt ZEFTEFEBETER 2 HHE - RIRZHME
R - RHETSFE B A RAKRERE - Algr

EH MARK IR -

SERTHHESREEMF LT REREE
FUTHHESRRENFLTRREXE
#ztE

AREFEREEWFERTHABRRBIEN2H
ZIEEAEFAREREBE QR BRRE
YMERAIEHESREENIF ETREBRAES

EEREMELATER  SRERAH(EER
Hlanx EHRaXEmEELHES)HR
BREERHABBEGREMN - R_T—+F
TZA=+—H  AEENKREVFEZEREER
1,326,939,000/# 7 (=ZF —734F : 1,121,881,000
BIr) HBEARMNKREMECZEEER
8,642,100,000/ 7T, (= ZF —734 : 9,484,400,000
F7T) - HeP A3 005,200,0007T ( —ZZF —754F ¢
VE#£3,283,933,0007T ) SFN AN ] o

ErTENEERENTHREESHEEMNIE
EHRERABLFNAABER  FPRERH
Er(eEHBRER - EHKEXR mBEuE
& R AOHIRFEAE R ) (KRR R EZHASERY
BEEMN - RZT—LFF+-A=+—80 - At
PESRHEENF LMBRERAEFLR ZEERER
38,798,000/ 7L (= —754F 137,295,000/ 7T) °

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

4.  Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Valuation of investment properties, investment in unlisted
equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets
(“AFS unlisted equity securities”) and investments in associates

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties held by the Group and its associates and AFS unlisted equity
securities.

When determine the fair values of investment properties, assumptions
and key inputs that involve significant judgements, including term yield,
reversionary yield and market rent of individual unit, were adopted. As at
31st December, 2017, the investment properties of the Group carried at
HK$1,326,939,000 (2016: HK$1,121,881,000); the investment properties
of its associates carried at HK$8,642,100,000 (2016: HK$9,484,400,000),
of which HK$3,005,200,000 (2016: HK$3,283,933,000) was attributable
to the Group.

When determine the fair value of AFS unlisted equity securities, which is
principally engaged in property investment, assumptions and key inputs
that involve significant judgements, including term vyield, reversionary yield,
market rent of individual unit and minority discount rate, were adopted.
As at 31st December, 2017, the AFS unlisted equity securities carried at
HK$38,798,000 (2016: HK$37,295,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of investment properties, investment in unlisted
equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets
(“AFS unlisted equity securities”) and investments in associates
(continued)

Notes 15 and 30(c) provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of these assets.

Any change in assumptions and inputs may result in any impact to the fair
value reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the carrying amount in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Valuation processes

Some of the Group's and associates’ assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Financial Controller of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. Significant judgements are used to determining the fair
value of these assets.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages independent and qualified professional valuers (the
"Valuers") to perform the valuation. The Financial Controller of the Company
works closely with the Valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the
findings to the board of directors of the Company every half year to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

DRMEGRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

5. Revenue and Segment Information

—=—tF —ZT—RK

2017 2016

F#&T T

HK$°000 HK8'000

REMENES A Rental income from investment properties 47,054 42,652

MEERE Estate management fees 11,450 11,341
REIELHRE 2 RAEHSUW A Dividend income from unlisted equity securities

NERAHEESREE classified as available-for-sale financial assets 1,500 1,500

60,004 55,493

ARBNATEECHERRERNEERRE -
WTESREREAEBEZEREK  REXAEEYE
HERMEEERRBE—2LENH - Hitt -

MEHAEENKE  EEUAREERBREES
BEOAT

R-B—+F+-A=+—8 uUREBZIER
HEELE(TEERBE AR ZEE M HH
ELREARE)A1,296,687,0008 T (= F— /N4 ¢
1,195,933,000 L) * fi AR B A 2 ZFIE
BN B B 418 544,050,000 T (— T — /N F
30,799,000 7T) °

AEERZFEZRRED © 48,079,000 7T
(ZZ— 7% : 7,921,000/ 7T ) 5K (4 288 — N KR
BRI NREBARBHEEME -HIES
RHZWNEREBFEUAT0%KIA L ©

The executive directors of the Company have been identified as the chief
operating decision maker. The executive directors regard the Group's
business as a single operating segment, which is property leasing and estate
management and reviews financial information accordingly. Therefore, no
segment analysis of the Group's revenue, results and segment assets and
liabilities are presented.

As at 31st December, 2017, other than interests in associates and
available-for-sale financial assets, the total of non-current assets located in
Hong Kong is HK$1,296,687,000 (2016: HK$1,195,933,000), and the
total of non-current assets located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") is HK$44,050,000 (2016: HK$30,799,000).

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from Hong Kong and approximately
HK$8,079,000 (2016: HK$7,921,000) is derived from a single external
customer. Except as disclosed, no revenue from transaction with other
single external customer is amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
revenue for the year.

6. EMIA 6. Other Income
—=2—tF —E—RE
2017 2016
FHET FET
HK$000 HKE'000
RITFLEMA Bank interest income 4,706 5,303
ERF BUA Loan interest income 877 =
Hith Others 142 20
5,725 5,323

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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e MR RMEE () NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE - FE—fFEF - F=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
7. HMFEN &= &EE 7. Other Gains and Losses
22—+t ZT—RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
SRE R Flzs (&58) Net exchange gain/(loss) 1,605 (5,360)
BEWMEE - MR EEER Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (53) (635)
Bl RERBEE(7E) Write-back of provision for doubtful debt (Note) - 16,147
1,552 10,152

i NIE-ARFRAZ=+H - —MHAMEAR -1t Note: On 30th May, 2016, the second cash distribution in respect of the liquidation of

SAREMEERAR ([ FHE]) BEEWENES
ZRABHR o Bt RUSFHRRRZ BTR R
BIRCWREREERABER -

a then subsidiary, Beijing Dan Yao Property Company Limited (“Dan Yao") was
received. Accordingly, the provision for doubtful debt on the amount due from Dan
Yao was written back to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, to the extent of
the cash received.

8. FIEMixIH 8. Income Tax Expenses
—Z—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FET FHIT
HK$°000 HK8'000
BIBFTSH Hong Kong Profits Tax
RER Current year 4,546 2,602
EFERREER Overprovision in prior years (29) 61)
4,517 2,541
RIEFRISTL(H1:23) Deferred taxation (note 23) 8,921 12,633
REFERIAX H Income tax expense for the year 13,438 15,174

EBNETIRBAEE 2 MR HFATIE  Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
16.5%EE B - Eh B ABEPTSAER Wik & profit for the year. Taxation on profits generated in Mainland China has
A ERELEME - AR -ZE—+ K =-F—;<x been provided at the rate of taxation prevailing in Mainland China. No profit
FHRRBEREREAMERHA - iEmELA®  tax in Mainland China has been provided as no assessable profit in the
RIS o years of 2017 and 2016.

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

8. Income Tax Expenses (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

—Z—t%F —TRE

2017 2016

F#ET T

HK$°000 HK8'000

R PS50 Al g A Profit before income tax 182,603 76,936
REBEHME165% 2 2 F18  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax of 16.5%

(ZZF—7"F : 16.5%) (2016: 16.5%) 30,129 12,695
PRI E 2 & Effect of different tax rate 119 (755)
AR 2 I8 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

purpose 1,092 3,661
IERTRMAZ TR & Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1.823) (5,479)
JERE B AT RN Z HIBR 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates (16,343) 5114
BEFEBRARE Over provision in prior years (29) 61)
REERT TE B N E b A 005 A Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

ERIBIBRE 412 279
BB RIER IR 18 R HA Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

AMRERERE L HIAXE not recognised (722) (343)
Hith Others 603 63
REEHIEXH Income tax expense for the year 13,438 15,174

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. Profit for the Year

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

—Z—t%F —T—RF
2017 2016
F#&T FET
HKS$'000 HK8'000
REE&MENR Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging:
e YN E L Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,871 3,730
HoH T (b R 2 TR E K Amortisation of prepaid lease payments on
land use rights 294 465
FrEMEHER Total depreciation and amortisation 2,165 4,195
FekHEMER Salaries and other costs 13,277 21,637
RINEFE R Retirement benefit costs 383 389
SETEBRERE Total staff costs 13,660 22,026
EXESWRAZIREMERN Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that generated rental income 7,909 7,631
WEEEHSWAZIREMEDN Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that did not generate rental income 52 139
ZHER Audit fee 1,200 1,450

DEREEGRAR
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10. EEM

ENKERTFAL(ZE—RF : +—)EFZ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

10. Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2016: eleven)

e Directors were as follows:
—2—tF
2017
we/
R ER HER B TRF
HtiRF -] 43 bg A
Salaries/ Performance Retirement
EZWS  service fees related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments contributions Total
FEIT FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BITER Executive Directors
EREHd) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Note d) 11 - - = 1
BEm(HEd) Edwin Lo King Yau (Note d) 1 - - = 1
R E (fiitd) Tao Tsan Sang (Note d) 11 - = = 1
BE (Hiita d) Liu Kin Sun (Notes g, d) - = = - -
AEIR(Wiite d) Cindy Yung Yee Mei (Notes a, d) - = = - -
33 - - - 33

FRBERZHTETHEERERNREEELRR

CISENSUE Sy i

FRITESE
FREWitq )

PRBERZIFATETHE T EMNBREERAR

Non-Executive Director
Lee Seng Hui (Notes d, f)

BIRAEBER R

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

Group.

11 -

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

N

and the Group.

The Non-Executive Director's emoluments shown above were for his
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company




e M ERMEGE)

BE—F—tF1-A=1T—HILFE

()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

—Z—tFF%R Annual Report 2017 109

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

10. EEMlE @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
—2—t%
2017
we/
R ER HER B TRF
HAtniEFl ] k43 FHEIH®
Salaries/ Performance Retirement
EEWS  service fees related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments contributions Total
FEIT FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BIFRTER Independent Non-Executive
Directors
2IE(HEb) Li Chak Hung (Note b) 8 90 - - 98
R (Hr7tb) Choi Kin Man (Note b) 8 70 - - 78
BER(Hiite) Lisa Yang Lai Sum (Note e) 8 67 - - 75
24 227 - - 251

PRERZBIFNTESIE T BN KSR

REF R -

Fiat]

Total

The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

for their services as directors.

295

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

10. EEMlE @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
A=
2016
e/
MR & K s} S BRI
H iz Bz e BEIES
Salaries/  Performance Retirement
BEED service fees related benefits
Directors' and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments  contributions Total
FET FET FET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITER Executive Directors
B\ (ffztc) Dai Xiaoming (Note ¢) 10 2,395 200 522 3,127
TR (Hiztd) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Note d) = = = = =
B (Hztd) Edwin Lo King Yau (Note d) - - - - =
MR (Hiztd) Tao Tsan Sang (Note d) - = = = =
BE#(Hiits d) Liu Kin Sun (Notes a, d) = = = = =
DEE(Hita d) Cindy Yung Yee Mei (Notes a, d) = = = = =
10 2,395 200 522 3,127

PRERZHITESHES ERANKE

BIRAEBE R

FRITES
TS (Hztc)
FREHfiEd)

ERBERZIFATEEME I BN FEFEER

Non-Executive Directors

Kenneth Kon Hiu King (Note c)

Lee Seng Hui (Note d)

RAIRAEEER 2R -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

LB LINN

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

200

200

200

200

The Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for

their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

10. EEMlE @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
A=
2016
e/
MR & K B4R RRTEA
H iz Bz e BEIES
Salaries/  Performance Retirement
BEED service fees related benefits
Directors' and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments  contributions Total
FET FET FET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIFRTER Independent Non-Executive
Directors
2N (Hiztc) Jesse Leung Nai Chau (Note ¢) 240 - - - 240
BE(Mztc) Xiang Bing (Note ¢) 230 - - - 230
wRE(Hitc) Edward Shen (Note c) 240 - = - 240
710 = = = 710

PRERZBIFNTESIE T BN KSR

REE 2R -

1Bg Total

Hiaz -

@ KRZTE—tF=A=1+—HgHE-
b) R-ZE—+F=-At+BHEZT-

© RZE—R"FT+-A=-+=BFfE-
d) RZZE—A"E+—A+/\BEZT-
e NZE—+tE=A-+—BHEZE-
® RZZ—N\F—ANBEE -

The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors.

4,037

Notes:

(@)  Resigned on 21st March, 2017.

(b)  Appointed on 10th March, 2017.

()  Resigned on 22nd December, 2016.
(d)  Appointed on 18th November, 2016.
(e)  Appointed on 21st March, 2017.

® Resigned on 4th January, 2018.

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei performs the function of the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31st
December, 2017 and 2016.

11. Employees’ Emoluments

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, there is
no (2016: one) director of the Group whose emoluments are included in

note 10 above. The emoluments of the five (2016: four) individuals for the
year ended 3 1st December, 2017 are as follows:

—=—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FRTT FET
HK$000 HKg'000
e REMEF Salaries and other benefits 4,748 3,686
HEERME RS Performance related incentive payments - 347
RTEFIFT BN Retirement benefits scheme contributions 72 54
4,820 4,087

ZEATZMMESHIT The emoluments of the individual are within the following bands:
—Z—+tf —T—REF
2017 2016
EE®AE EEHE
Number of Number of
employees employees
07T — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 2
1,000,001/ 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 2
5 4

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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REMBHRMMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE - FE—fFEF - F=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

11. 12 S

CaAC))

ESEM& (&)

11. Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

NEE 2 FIEEIRBITHISHMKFE R &HEE  The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing
EEAFIRENMEE 2 XRBET - REMFA ©  remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective group
REFW B MEMME FZALRS5H 2 AT companies and individuals employees. During both years, no emoluments

TR RSB 5 AR B 2 $REH o

12. BRR&EF|

were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

12. Earnings Per Share

ARBIRREG 2 SRERBF THIZ T IERT  The calculation of the basic eamings per share attributable to the owners of

C the Company is based on the following:
—2—t%F T RF
2017 2016
FHET FET
HK$000 HK3'000
27 Earnings
At E BIREAREF 26 F Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
(RNREIRER G A FE R F)) per share (profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company) 169,165 61,762
—2—+tF —TREF
2017 2016
F T
‘000 ‘000
BB Number of shares
FAGHE BIREARE T 2 B Weighted average number of ordinary shares
I 28 for calculating basic earnings per share 1,242,047 1,243,096

HR_ZE—tFER_T-RFENILEHETT No diluted eamnings per share for both 2017 and 2016 were presented as
ESNERE LB AR T —+FEKR=F there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both 2017 and 2016.

—NEFE - WRE 25 EREERF -

DEREEGRAR
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e MR RMEE () NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
13. fR8 13. Dividends
—2—+tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
FET T
‘000 ‘000
REEARZARZKE : Dividend recognised as distributions
during the year:
ENZZ—tF R ERE Interim dividend for 2017 paid of HK25 cents
AER25BII( =T —NE &) (2016: Nil) per share 310,606 -
BENZZE-REZREFRRE Special dividend for 2016 paid of HK25 cents
BEBR2SEI(ZT—"F &) (2016: Nil) per share 310,606 -
TR RFWES RS No final dividend for 2016 paid (2016: for
(ZZ—RF B —RF2Z 2015 paid of HK15 cents per share)
RSB - 186,364
621,212 186,364

RBEBRRE  ARABRAZEZTEEHAE  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a second interim dividend
IREEE ZRPHR S ER25EIL - £5T48% & of HK$310,264,000, representing HK25 cents per ordinary share, based
310,264,000/ L( = —RF : &) WHMN=Z  on the number of shares in issue as at 31st December, 2017 (2016: Nil)
—N\FHAT=BxFIEEN TR _ZS—/\F has been approved by the directors of the Company, payable on or around
A=BRIRRBREAMA AR BIRER 13th April, 2018 to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders")

whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 3rd

April, 2018.

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

HRLH
RESEY BoZRME RERKE RE #@at
Leasehold
land and Office Furniture Motor
buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
TET FET FET TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R*{E cosT
RZZ—"¥—A—H At Tst January, 2016 93,815 3,651 17,073 1,494 116,033
ERTIERES Currency translation difference (99) (48) (6) - (153)
BRI EYE Transfer to investment properties (315) - - - (315)
BE Additions = 275 = 840 1,115
HE Disposals - (1,362) (536) (1,117) (3,015)
RZZE—REF At 31st December, 2016
+=-A=+—~H 93,401 2516 16,531 1,217 113,665
b 5 AR Currency translation difference 86 1 4 2 93
BYBEREME Transfer to investment properties (89,674) - - - (89,674)
BE Additions - 40 - - 40
e Disposals - (283) (279) (840) (1,402)
RZZE—+tF At 31st December, 2017
+=A=+—~ 3813 2274 16,256 379 22,722
HE DEPRECIATION
RZT—"¥—F—H At 1st January, 2016 10,994 2,589 14,906 1,494 29,983
RS Currency translation difference (10) @2) 5) - (36)
REZETR Provided for the year 2,282 434 844 170 3,730
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties (22) - - - (22)
PO B EHER Eliminated from disposals - (628) (341) (1,117) (2,086)
RZZE—R%F At 31st December, 2016
+-A=+—H 13,244 2,374 15,404 547 31,569
S Currency translation difference 34 3 5 2 44
REFER Provided for the year 989 60 726 9% 1,871
BRI EE Transfer to investment properties (13,622) - - - (13,622)
R SRR Eliminated from disposals - (282) (239) (266) (787)
RZT—tF At 31st December, 2017
+-A=t+—~H 645 2,155 15,896 379 19,075
IRE{E CARRYING VALUES
RZZ—tF At 31st December, 2017
+=-A=1+—H 3,168 119 360 = 3,647
RZT—REF At 31st December, 2016
+=A=+—~H 80,157 142 1,127 670 82,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

15. Investment Properties

—E2—+tF T RF

2017 2016

F#&T T

HK$000 HKg'000

REA] At beginning of the year 1,121,881 1,033,090

P30 AR RS A Transfer from land use rights 21,552 2,267

R - MW R A Transfer from property, plant and equipment 136,867 826
T 8 B Currency translation difference 344 (104)

AR BEEEE Change in fair values 46,295 85,802

RER At the end of the year 1,326,939 1,121,881
REEZREMERERE AR _F—+F  The fair values of the Group's investment properties at the date of transfer
+—A=t—RAZARBETHEKAEREER and on 31st December, 2017 have been arrived at on the basis of a
REAE Y B — L HEE T EAR AT valuation carried out on that dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited

(ZZ2—RE+_A=T—H-BRRTERA
ADRE BETHE - EHERFEARQ A LA
BRITARARGHEESENER - NEHME
E’\J’A;ﬁfj%fﬁﬁ% CMENRRERERESEEA
Rk o

ZAEZZERNREEL
HELIREANES -

pul

SABRITHEE MBERH

RANEENNEME  HEHES—ENEE
EXBSEEREUEE  ERE—RAOBEROE
EEBTEBENME e FEA L
D) -

(2016: DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited), a firm of independent and
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

The valuation was principally based on investment method by taking into
account the current rents passing and the reversionary income potential of
tenancies.

For the properties which are currently vacant, the valuation was based
on each of the property interests by capitalisation of the hypothetical and
reasonable market rents with a typical lease term and also make reference
to the direct comparison approach. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in the prior year.

—Z2—+tF ZTRF
2017 2016
F#T FHET
HK$°000 HK'000
FIEIREMAEMRHRBIRES Investment properties are all located in the PRC
WARHBLISHTAT : and Hong Kong and comprise properties held
under:
REHL Long term 1,127,069 1,048,931
R EITRAY Medium-term lease 199,870 72,950
1,326,939 1,121,881

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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BERRERNAEEEARENENRABER
EFMEANGEETERZE) - RAAEBEFEMR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

15. Investment Properties (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the
major investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

EEERSRANARENRE
EERIBREY Relationship of unobservable
Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

fINERZ EENE F=R REL(BBESZ)

EHATELBRE LN RS RRRAEREARIE HRKERER - AABEGE -

Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (term and B A MVRETE 4 £0FA% - MENE £ B2002250(=F The increase in the term yield

in Hong Kong reversionary approach)

R2ER:

The key inputs are:

(1) BEEE
Term yield;

() s R

=N £ 2.25022.75%) © would result in a decrease in fair

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from ~ value.

comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the

certainty of term income secured and to be received, of  ERUERHS - AL EEHE

2% to 2.5% (2.25% to 2.75%). The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in

B ABUTSERESRARAERBYEMENLT fair value.

B EBREER2NEIN(ZT—RF : 2250F

2.75%) © mEEAEEE A EEES

Reversionary yield; and  Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market  The increase in the market rent

rental income and unit market value of the comparable  would result in an increase in fair

(3) ERIEMTHEMMS  properies, of 2.5% to 3% (2016:2.25% 10 2.75%).  value.
Market rent of individual

unit

mEEUBEHBRERTHENE - WA ALE A
{ERIRZE (PN : BRETERE - MERDRARIE) « FHT5
ENBENTFHBTARBAETEGTHREASE
TUZB—RF 2128227857 ©

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market rent is from around
HK$30 sq.ft/month to HK$51 sq.ft./month (2016:
HK$21.2 sq.ft/month to HK$27.8 sq.ft,/month).

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE HERER
FREFMGERRME &8 TESH EEERSBALAREDRE
Investment Properties Fair value  Valuation techniques EERLERSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
(NP S E=H REL(BHESRE) EHAATEL BN FEENPR R AERRANE BRREZEs  ALEEYE -
Commercial properties  Level 3 Investment method (term and BRI ARV BETE 1 M0FRE - AW EE £25%Z5%(=F The increase in the term yield
in Hong Kong reversionary approach) —NE 1 2625%£3.875%) © would result in a decrease in fair
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from  value.
TE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

The key inputs are:

(1) BEkzEE
Term yield;

Q) BRY&EE &
Reversionary yield; and

(3) ERIBEfMTSENRE
Market rent of individual
unit

certainty of term income secured and to be received, of
2.5% to 5% (2016: 2.625% to 3.875%).

B ABNTSERRERA R BB E M ER T
f6 - EENEEARINES5%N(ZF—AF : 2625%F
3.875%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3% to 5.5% (2016: 2.625% to 3.875%).

THENEEHBRAERTSRNUE - WA ALEREM
[ERIER (I : BRETERE - MEXDRRIE) - FaH5
EBENTHETHIREAI8ELEEGTHREA205
BL(ZZ—RF  13BTZ1958T) ©

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market rent is from around
HK$18 sq.ft/month to HK$205 sq.ft/month (2016:
HK$13 sq.ft/month to HK$195 sq.ft,/month).

ERkEEES  ARBEYE-
The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mEEAeHS  AABEES
The increase in the market rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

15. Investment Properties (continued)

EEERSBALAREDRE
EERLEREY Relationship of unobservable
Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

fInEEZ TRNE E=R RAZ(RHERE)

EATELBMEE LN RS R RRAERIAURE BRKEXER  AABEYE -

Industrial properties Level 3 Investment method (term and BRI A KBTI DR - AR RA275%%3%(ZF  The increase in the term yield

in Hong Kong reversionary approach)

The key inputs are:

(1) BEkzEE
Term yield;

Q) BRY&EE &

=R 30p) o would result in a decrease in fair

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from  value.

comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the

certainty of term income secured and to be received, of  ERUEERHE - AL EELE -

2.75% to 3% (2016: 3%). The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in

EHABNTSFRESRARAEREMEMENT far value.

& EEREERI25%0Z35%(ZF—/F 1 3%) o

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market TRENSHE * DA EELS

Reversionary yield; and  rental income and unit market value of the comparable  The increase in the market rent

properties, of 3.25% to 3.5% (2016: 3%). would result in an increase in fair

() EREfRmEENEE value.
Market rent of individual ~ THEMUASHEEZTHBMUE » TEFALE REM

unit

{ERIRZ (DI : FRETiEE - MER KRR « FHT5
BURENFHETIREBATALES T AREGA2TE
T(ZE—AF 12581 2274T) o

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market rent is from
around HK$7 sq.ft./month to HK$27 sq.ft/month (2016:
HK$12.5 sq.ft/month to HK$27 sq.ft/month).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

15. Investment Properties (continued)

LRRE HERER

FREFMGERRME &8 TESH EEERSBALAREDRE
Investment Properties Fair value  Valuation techniques EERLERSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
A& 2 B E=R REL(BHESRE) EHAATEL BN FEENPR R AERRANE BRREZEs  ALEEYE -
Carparks in Hong Kong ~ Level 3 Investment method (term and  SARBEE LA E - HHBYEER20(ZF—7F :  The increase in the term yield

reversionary approach) 400 F50) ° would result in a decrease in fair

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from  value.
TE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

The key inputs are:

(1) HfhmE
Term yield; and

() BERhEE R
Reversionary yield;

(3) ERIBEfMTSENRE
Market rent of individual
unit

certainty of term income secured and to be received, of
2% (2016: 4% to 5%).

B ABNTSERRERA R BB E M ER T
& ERREEAIS0(ZT—AF  49%E5%) -
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.5% (2016: 4% to 5%).

mEEUBEBRERTHENE - WA LE KA
ERIRRE(IN : BREER  WERNRRE) - T
BENRENEA26008T(ZF—77F : 25008 TE
5500/87T) °

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage and facilities. The market
rent is around HK$2,600/month (2016: HK$2,500/
month to HK$5,500/month).

ERkEEES  ARBEYE-
The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mEEAeHS  AABEES
The increase in the market rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

15. Investment Properties (continued)

EEERSBALAREDRE
EERLEREY Relationship of unobservable
Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

RNPEERNZEENE F=/& RAZ(RHERE)

EATELBMEE LN RS R RRAERIAURE BRKEXER  AABEYE -

Residential properties ~ Level 3 Investment method (term and S AR B FE - BHKEER1.5%Z3.5%(=F The increase in the term yield

in PRC reversionary approach)

The key inputs are:

(1) BEkzEE
Term yield;

Q) BRY&EE &

—NEF 1 2.50) ° would result in a decrease in fair

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from  value.

comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the

certainty of term income secured and to be received, of  ERUEERHE - AL EELE -

1.5% to 3.5% (2016: 2.5%). The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in

EHABNTSFRESRARAEREMEMENT far value.

B EHUREEREIN(ZF—EF : 30)

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market TRENSHE * DA EELS

Reversionary yield; and  rental income and unit market value of the comparable  The increase in the market rent

properties, of 206 to 4% (2016: 3%). would result in an increase in fair

() EREfRmEENEE value.
Market rent of individual ~ THEMUASHEEZTHBMUE » TEFALE REM

unit

{ERIRZ (DI : FRETiEE - MER KRR « FHT5
BEURENFHETIABAARK4OTERTIAE
AARBISIL(ZF %  12TARE) -

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market rent is from around
RMB140 sq.m./month to RMB151 sq.m./month (2016:
RMB172 sq.m./month).
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FEMBERERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

16. e A

16. Land Use Rights

—Z—t%F —TREF
2017 2016
F#&T FET
HKS$'000 HK$000
REA] At beginning of the year 22,755 24,629
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties (12,537) (749)
i Amortisation (294) (465)
T 5 B Currency translation difference 227 (660)
RER At the end of the year 10,151 22,755
17. RE$EREZ 17. Interests in Associates
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
F#T FHET
HK$°000 HK8'000
WEMKA - FELE™ Cost of investments, unlisted 223,816 223816
FERU B 2 KB K Share of post-acquisition profits and
Hh 2 EME other comprehensive income,
BrA% 812 net of dividends received 2,500,585 2,912,984
2,724,401 3,136,800
EAR—Z—tFR=_FT—"F+-HA=+—H Details of the principal associates as at 31st December, 2017 and 2016
2 EEBENRFHEENHTE33(D) © are set out in note 33(b).

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

17. Interests in Associates (continued)

BEABEAFICHMESHEE Summarised financial information of the material associate
Zeta Estates Limited Zeta Estates Limited
—=—tF —EREF
2017 2016
FEIT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 497,759 989,203
ERBEE Non-current assets 8,904,632 9,194,395
UEIN=NE Current liabilities (758,573) (222,215)
JEmEAE Non-current liabilities (1.410,133) (1,457,974)
FEEMNEEESHE The above amounts of assets and
BHEUATAR : liabilities include the following:
KEMZE Investment properties 7,895,100 8,749,600
ReRREEFE Cash and cash equivalents 82,027 42,471
RPeRmBE(TEEERNRIER Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
FERTE R R B other payables and provisions) (732,146) (146,868)
FRBEBE(TEZENTIER Non current liabilities (excluding trade and
FEETE R K EHE) other payables and provisions) (1.410,133) (1,457,974)
Wezs Revenue 759,215 1,597,500
WEMER R EEE Change in fair value of investment properties 259,100 (66,600)
ANEFE(BR)ELE Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year 264,675 (185,543)
AR Z 3 (5 Zeta Estates Limited Dividends received from Zeta Estates Limited
BB U ER AR 2 during the year 511,450 -

DEREEGRAR
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
17. REGERA]Z R (E) 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
EARELATICHESIHEER) Summarised financial information of the material associate
(continued)
Zeta Estates Limited(#) Zeta Estates Limited (continued)

Tt B ER E RS S B RE PR Zeta Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
Estates Limitedz2 AR E (BSR40 T carrying amount of the interest in Zeta Estates Limited recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

—Z—t%F —T—REF
2017 2016
FET T
HKS$'000 HK8'000
Zeta Estates Limited 2 JF & E Net assets of Zeta Estates Limited 7,233,685 8,503,409
AREE A Zeta Estates Limited iR E (& Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Zeta
R (AR BT A R Estates Limited (Proportion of the Group's
Lt 5133.339%) ownership interest of 33.330%) 2,411,228 2,834,470
Hth IE(E R S BB N RIS ERL Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:
—2—tF —TREF
2017 2016
F#EIT FHET
HKS'000 HK8'000
REEERFEFER The Group's share of profit and total
EERES B comprehensive income for the year 10,835 30,846
REBNZEEE R R Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests
TSR AAE in these associates 313,173 302,330

BMERNRETBZHERDEERLNEE Z  The major non-current assets of the associates investment properties in
BEYESF 58,642,100000F L (=T —7~ Hong Kong amounting to HK$8,642,100,000 (2016: HK$9,484,400,000),
9,484,400,00078 7T ) + £ 13,005,200,0007& 7T of which HK$3,005,200,000 (2016: HK$3,283,933,000) was attributable
(ZZ—7X: 3,283,933,000/87T) 85N A%EE - T to the Group. The following table shows the valuation techniques and
RRER{EARBALENEHASEALABER inputs used in the determination of fair values for investment properties
BERNRREMEZ ARERAAEFEMED  of associates as well as fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
ZKRF(—E=F)  URBERAFABEZEEZS  measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
HRMELE AR ESET - which significant inputs used in the fair value measurements is observable.

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

17. Interests in Associates (continued)

EEERSHANARENRE
EEREBREY Relationship of unobservable
Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value

R EE 2 BRME F=R REL(BBESZ)

EHATELBMRE LS RRRAEREARIE HRKERER - AABEGE -

Commercial properties  Level 3 Investment method (termand BRI A BIRETE 1E VB E - RERIKE 2 R2.5%%3.0%(=F  The increase in the term yield

in Hong Kong reversionary approach)

IRBEA:

The key inputs are:

(1) BEEE
Term yield;

) EBkEE: R

=~ £ 275%Z3.75%) © would result in a decrease in fair

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from ~ value.

comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the

certainty of term income secured and to be received, of ~ EHKEZHE - AL BEME -

2.5% to 3.0% (2016: 2.75% to 3.75%). The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in

B ABUTSERESRARAEBYEMENT fair value.

B EHREERINEISN(ZF—RF  275%F

3.75%) © mZENEeHRE  AABEES

Reversionary yield; and  Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market  The increase in the market rent

rental income and unit market value of the comparable  would result in an increase in fair

(3) ERIEMTHEMMS  properies, of 3.0% to 3.5% (2016: 2.75% 10 3.75%).  value.
Market rent of individual

unit

mEELBEHBRERTHENE - WA ALE A
{ERIRZE (I : BRETERE - MERDRRIE) « FHT5
ENBENTFHBTARBAZELEG T ARG A64E
T(ZB—RE  4BTESIET) ©

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market rent is from around
HK$33 sq.ft,/month to HK$64 sq.ft./month (2016:
HK$24 sq.ft/month to HK$89 sq.ft/month).
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE - FE—fFEF - F=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

17. REGERA]Z R (E) 17. Interests in Associates (continued)

SftRE  HERER

FREFMSERRME &8 FEEY EEERSBALAREDMNE
Investment Properties Fair value  Valuation techniques EERLRRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
frRERZz TRYM% F=H REA(HHERE) BEHAATE LB FEENPR R AERRARRE BRkEEEs  AnEESE -
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment method (term and BRI ARYRETE MRVEAR » ARG X A3%(=ZF—~% :  The increase in the term yield
in Hong Kong reversionary approach) 30) would result in a decrease in fair
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from  value.
TE2YE: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the
The key inputs are: certainty of term income secured and to be received, 3% BFREEWR AL BEME -
(2016: 3%). The increase in the reversionary
(1) BEElmE yield would result in a decrease in
Term yield; EHABUMBFERSMARTELBMENSNT fair value.
B ERUEEARISN(ZZ—F 3%) -
(2 EHYRE K Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market MZENEEHE @ A EELS
Reversionary yield; and  rental income and unit market value of the comparable  The increase in the market rent
properties, 3.5% (2016: 3%). would result in an increase in fair
(3) ERIEfuTZELES value.
Market rent of individual ~ W55 EN AR ERERETHEMUE @ LEFALEREM
unit {ERIRZ (I : FRETi8R - MERDRRIE) « TS

BUBEENTFHNETARBATIBLZEGTIREAS
BT(Z2—RF : 90BTE2TET) ©

Market rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market rent is from around
HK$7.3 sq.ft/month to HK$31 sq.ft/month (2016:
HK$9.0 sq.ft./month to HK$27 sq.ft/month).

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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R MGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
18. AIHEESREE 18. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets
—=—tF —T—RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
HESREERS : Available-for-sale financial assets comprise:
Ik EmRARZ S (M ita) Unlisted equity securities (Note a) 38,798 37,295
FE ETRLEEREREE Unlisted club debentures 10,500 9,851
49,298 47,146
Hist - Notes:

(@) #EFEEAEEEFENREYERENIELTAT (@)  The amount represents the Group's 5% equity interest in an unlisted company,
HI5%RRIE © which is principally engaged in property investment.

(b) FBELAREAURAREEIE AREEE (b)) Al the above investments are stated at fair value measurements are set out in
2 BRI EE30(C) ° note 30(c).

19. FEUEIE « TENERE - %2 & E  19. Debtors, Prepayments, Deposits and Other

fth FEUR SR IR Receivables
—E—+tF —E—REF
2017 2016
FEIT FEr
HKS’000 HK$000
ST FE W R IE Trade debtors 1,055 1,177
H b fEURIE Other receivables 5,557 5,034
TENERR RIS Prepayments and deposits 2,171 2,368
8,783 8,579
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19. JEUFIE ~ TEMERR - ek 19. Debtors, Prepayments, Deposits and Other

fth FE UL SR IE (1) Receivables (continued)
EREWFENRR 2B RWEEREREW  Trade debtors represent rental and estate management fees receivable
o BRAENR RN ZORMEBE L - FA4 U are receivable on the presentation of debit notes. Rental income is billed
ANEARIRR&E - AEE@EBIRMI0OKEEY  in advance at month-end. The Group generally allows a credit period of
FHBEP - ARE@MEREWSRBIGREBRIEE 30 days to its tenant. The ageing of these trade debtors of the Group, net

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

WA RER B EArARER AT of provisions and in accordance with the revenue recognition dates, is as
follows:
—=—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEIT FET
HKS$000 HK$'000
30HA Within 30 days 1,055 1,177

B 2 ¥R FRE N & B BB B E R 2K

HAE

EBRYHIR - BNERR RS 2 S RREEN

which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

All of these trade debtors are also past due as at the reporting date for

The carrying amounts of the debtors, prepayments, deposits and other

THIEHE RN - receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
—E—+t%F —TRE
2017 2016
FAET &
HK$°000 HK3'000
BT HK$ 8,664 8,532
AR Renminbi ("RMB") 51 25
E7T United States dollar ("USD") 68 22
8,783 8,579

20. EMERK

20. Loan Receivable

BTN FEFER A% R=Z—/\F/XxAZ Loan receivable with an independent third party bears interest rate of 6%
B mIEHER - WHPEEEMAGKABRARIE  per annum, unsecured, guaranteed by China Medical & Healthcare Group

RERA

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

Limited and will mature in June 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

21. Non-Pledged Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
Over Three Months/Cash and Cash Equivalents

—ZT—t%F T RF
2017 2016
F#T FHET
HK$000 HK'000
ERIFRRNER =@ AR Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
TEHTFER of over three months 73,323 151,076
RERBRCEEY Cash and cash equivalents:
RITFRERE Cash at bank and in hand 32,995 63,863
RHIRTTIF AR Short term bank deposits with original maturity
(RR=1EAR2IE) within 3 months 414,093 766,564
ReEnERIRER Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow
WS EEBYHNT statements analysis 447,088 830,427

=EAUEBTRARE Z RIEHRITFIURSF
FIR A TF0.80%ZE0.90%( —=Z—754F : FH0.78%
Z0.90% ) N 3.95%4.30%( —F —XNF : T i@
) - RITHERBFNRITM ST EHO0.15%F
0.90%(=F—7~4F : 0.22%%0.91%) °

RHFHEBE=EANRcERER Re Kk
ReFEYNEERERFERNEREATIE

The non-pledged bank deposits of more than three months denominated
in HK$ and RMB carried prevailing market rates ranging from 0.80% to
0.90% (2016: from 0.78% to 0.90%) per annum and from 3.95% to
4.30% (2016: n/a) respectively. The bank balances carry prevailing market
rates ranging from 0.15% to 0.90% (2016: 0.22% to 0.91%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of over three months/cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

HEtE following currencies:
—2—tF —E—REF
2017 2016
FET FET
HKS000 HK3'000
BT HK$ 470,190 905,784
AR RMB 10,468 35,976
ey usb 39,753 39,743
520,411 981,503

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

22. I&A 22. Share Capital
—=—tF —F—K
2017 2016
2078 4= F#ET i & E FET
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
BETRER Issued and fully paid:
Rn—HA—H At 1st January 1,242,424,945 681,899 1,247,298945 681,899
1815 Bl i Repurchases of shares (1,370,000) - (4,874,000) -
Rt+t=-—A=+—H At 31st December 1,241,054,945 681,899 1242424945 681,899

MiaE - N B B X BT B 2K & 2 iR 17 1,370,000 %
(ZZ—X%F : 4,874,0000%) ° Mz fT:zkkh 242
A 2,731,000 7T (—F— /N : 6,538,000/8
70) B AR ER s R R HIBR o BTG B BB AR 7 35 45 =E

RBE-Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE  £2
RIREE X PTEmME AR S EBAAT

Note: The Group acquired 1,370,000 (2016: 4,874,000) of its own shares through
purchases on the Stock Exchange. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
HK$2,731,000 (2016: HK$6,538,000) which has been deducted from retained
profits. All the repurchased shares were cancelled.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Company repurchased
its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

e R EES

BF v BRBERR (HR%BASZAT)

Number of  Purchase consideration Aggregate

ordinary per share consideration

EEEES shares RmE RIEE  paid (before

Date of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)

T T BT

HKS HK§ HK§

—E—tFAATAA 19th September, 2017 500,000 1.97 1.95 983,390
—E—tFNA=TH 20th September, 2017 172,000 1.99 1.97 341,280
“T—+FNA=Z+HH  25th September, 2017 500,000 1.99 1.98 994,730
—ZT—tFNA=1+<H 26th September, 2017 198,000 1.99 1.99 394,020
e Total: 1,370,000 2,713,420

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

23. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements
thereon during the current and prior years:

LE E ALt

LREE BER Hth #@st
Fair Value
of Properties LAT Other Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
RZZE—RFE—HA—H At 1st January, 2016 134,796 = 201 134,997
RERNEBz(BEDIE  Charge (credit) to profit or loss
for the year 12,663 - (30) 12,633
RZZE—RF At 31st December, 2016
+=-A=+— 147,459 - 171 147,630
RERNB BN B% Charge to profit or loss
for the year 7,764 1,051 106 8,921
BB REENR Charge to property revaluation
reserve — 4,856 — 4,856
RZZ—t5F At 31st December, 2017
+=-A=+—~H 155,223 5,907 277 161,407

R|EBRR - AEBHEAE AJEHR R 2 &
&) i B 78 85 48 20,630,000 8 7T ( = & — /N F -
22,506,000/ 7T) © AR EETERIR @A - Bl
BT BIEEBRARLEREEE -

HAithE 18 AT AR BIR AR -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$20,630,000 (2016: HK$22,506,000) available to offset
against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

These unused tax losses have no expiry date.

DRMEGRA
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e MR RMEE () NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
24, ENFIBNEER 24. Creditors and Accruals
22—+t —TREF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
FEREAROR Trade creditors 333 334
HAb e FRIE Other creditors 10,127 9,420
HFPET% Tenants deposits 12,750 11,645
EEtEEER Accrued operating expenses 3,730 5,072
26,940 26,471
REBEBIREZAHERNTIEZREWT The ageing of the trade creditors of the Group in accordance with invoice
date is as follows:
22—+t ZTREF
2017 2016
F#T FET
HK$°000 HK$000
30HA Within 30 days 333 334

ENREREFER 2 BEERBENTIIER S  The carying amounts of trade and other creditors and tenants deposits are

=V denominated in the following currencies:
—E2—+tF —EBRE
2017 2016
FET T
HK$°000 HK3'000
BT HK$ 23,123 21,353
AR RMB 87 46
23,210 21,399

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

25. Operating Leases Commitments

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$47,054,000 (2016:
HK$42,652,000). The properties held had committed leases mainly
running for the next one to five years. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments as lessor
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

—Z—+tf —T—RF

2017 2016

FREIT FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

R—F2ZA Within one year 41,388 41,374
RE_FEZEFLF(BEERMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 24,957 43,442
66,345 84,816

@i

T—t+F+ A=+ HFEERIHKE
2N aE 2% E££511,450,000/8 7T @ FA{EE
& \F1139,823,000/8 T °

AEE2BRBBR BN BRI S L 2 EBH
Kt B J(f BERAEE ) RRBERESGHIR
“RERFE - AR zaEe BI([RESE
gl ZEFEZEERAKREZEEDFR
B BRRAETERZEAESMEE - £BES
?JrilﬂZiZﬁﬁ C RRBEERARGEIKEZRER
BEREE2EBERAGTEREEREEHE
AR -_ZTTF+_A—RAURHAB 2B
BER2HERRSE -

HRaEL:TEKE  BEERAEBZHRE
EBEFABBH S 25% @ & &1 R A30,000
HIT

26. Major Non-Cash Transaction

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, part of dividend from an
associate of HK$511,450,000 was used to offset the amount due to
associates of HK$139,823,000.

27. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee's monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK$30,000.

DRMEGRA
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28. BB R B M AERR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

27. Retirement Benefit Plans (continued)

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the employees
at a rate of 5% and from the Group at a rate of 5% of the employee’s basic
salary. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. During the years ended
31st December, 2016 and 31st December, 2017, there were no forfeited
contributions used to set off contributions. At the end of the reporting
period, no forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
ORSO Scheme, are available to reduce the contributions payable in future
years.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$383,000 (2016:

HK$389,000).

28. Related Parties Transactions and Balances

REEZE-_ZT—tF+= H +B1EXMEAR - & During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group had transactions
SEEEHEAL IR RERIT and balances with related parties as follows:
(a) FABKAES (a) Related party transactions:
—2—t%F T RF
2017 2016
FHET FET
HK$000 HKg'000
i YNC] Associates
— REEREH M EEERA — Property management
fee earned by the Group 5,577 6,113
HWANRRAEAFEHZEERE A major shareholder with significant influence
e HE(ER)ERAR([HE over the Company, Allied Properties
HE ) A RERKZERAT (H.K.) Limited ("APL") and its ultimate
holding company
—AAEBEKRNES - — Rent, property management and air-
MEERERZERER conditioning fees charged to the Group 855 -
— MRS B U AL B R — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 134 -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

28. Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)
(b) Key management personnel compensation

The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the

Company, who are the directors of the Company, for the year is set out in
note 10.

() FEBAHEER (c) Related Party balances
—Z—+tf —TREF
2017 2016
FREIT FET
HK$°000 HK$000
YN Associates
— H h FEUTAR K — Other receivable 222,717 3,925
— HAtb TR X — Other payable 1,288 139,823
A HE - U RHSEIERAR APL and its ultimate holding company
—EETEESH — Other payable 130 -

FEATEE & M A R B SRR AR A R R A R ERIE
o EFE RRERERE -

FEU, (FEA) Bt 1N RIBR RIS AR AR IR AR - 58
FORBREIERERMR - ARREERRZHE
EMENBERRE T —EAAREE Bt

The amounts due to APL and its ultimate holding company are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed repayment term. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the amount is expected to be recoverable within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period and therefore is classified under
current assets.

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Br —FE—tFEF - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

29. EARERE TR

29. Capital Risk Management

REBEREERN  UHRAER 2 EEE#  The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
B WEBE(CETSRERAS AL be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

NG

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

REBINBRNEBABRATEA AEE#Z - 8 The capital structure of the Group represents equity attributable to the

RIS K i

owners of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

EETHEMEAREE - tEAILEMz—3R &  The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this
FEBEAKANEERNHEB AR - KREBPE  review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
BEZFEZERNNVERE BT MRS REERAR  with capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will

M- FEHEEEENGRE -

HEFE - NEBZEERBEEITT

30. @Rt T A

(a) &MIRZEH

balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and
repurchase of shares.

o The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

30. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

—ZT—+t%F T RF
2017 2016
F#T FHET
HK$000 HKg'000
SMEE Financial assets
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 49,298 47,146
ERMESER(BIERITETR Loans and receivables (including cash and
ReRIREME) cash equivalents) 771,975 992,708
827,273 1,039,854
AR Financial liabilities
R ER AT E At amortised cost 24,498 165,140

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED




REeMIERERMEGE)
BE-F—+F1+-A=1—AUFE
30. @I AE®)

(b) HERREEHERNE

AEEZIRSRMTABEARNERE - BS

FEUERR - b RURR - B ER - Bl &
NHERRRRK - BEMZR|ITER - |RITETF
kBE BHEMNER  EENFUARESE

A ZEeRTAFBENESMERE - ZF/
TREMzRERBEM SRR R ERRE - SN
e M EMERRERR) - FERRMREERR - T
XEIIAREZERBR IR - EEEEER
EEZERR - URERREMEZHERIVEES 2
i °

mEmEE
0 IMEER

AEEEE S RUERN - HtEKERER - BIEE
R NN EARERR  BERZROTE
F o RITEERAS - BHRENER - BEOEN
FIRNEFERARRALINEE - MRFINE
EARSEERENNEGETR - FEAEEE
E SN LR o NS5 [E B AT SN B 1) SIS S
HEER  BEAKESEYERINERR - YEE
REBERINERIAH - AIRERE -

RB|EBR - AERBUINEHEIIENEREE
NE®ABENREEMT

()

—Z—tF &3 Annual Report 2017 137

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale financial
assets, trade debtors, other receivables, loan receivable, amounts due
from/to associates, non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of over
three months, cash and cash equivalents, trade creditors, other creditors
and accrued operating expenses. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
() Currency risk

The Group has trade debtors, other receivables, non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade creditors and accrued operating expenses that are denominated in
foreign currencies which are different from the functional currency of the
respective group entity and accordingly expose the Group to currency risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency exposure. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

gE afE
Assets Liabilities
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF —Z=—+tF —E—K
2017 2016 2017 2016
TFET FET FETT FET
HK$°000 HKZ'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ESI usD 39,821 39,765 - —
AR RMB 10,519 36,001 87 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in HK$ against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis bank balances and cash. A
positive number indicates an increase in profit for the year where the HK$
strengthens against the relevant currency. If there is 5% increase in HK$
against the relevant foreign currencies, the decrease in the profit for the
year is shown as below:

—2—tF —T—RF
2017 2016
F#T FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
AREE RMB
RER @R Decrease in profit for the year 522 1,798

EEERR  BREINMTERRAEIINER
b - FARFEREARLRRERZAER -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.




R MBEERME(E)
BZE—F—+Ff-A=+—HIUIFE
. SR THE)

(b) FAFSEEREIE MR BRGR)

EmEE ()

(i) FEE
AEEAAEZHNERRBREES NEKRER °
AREBESEBESSERSARESH s ZEM
A AREBEFERR - ANEB B A ER X
[ELBR B SNEE SR ER SR - (BN B & 2 Y] BE BRI =R

Rk - WEERBARERITLMEERHEL - LA
IR o

1

&
E,m
X
9

REBERRTERZANEEH 2 X EMBEAR
RABENERE  HAKEMELEEATE -

(i) BB
AEBZEETAHEESREERERR
B35

&
DRAAEE - Bt AREBEATEGE
B EEMRRERRR

=H]
&

THIGURE S
BEE -

R IR RS B HAAS 2 BR AR

—+EFF# Annual Report 2017 139

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk related primarily to loan receivables.
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as its cash and cash
equivalents which are subject to floating interest rate. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group closely
monitors interest rate movements and will enter into new banking facilities
when favourable pricing opportunities arise. The management monitors the
Group's interest exposure and will consider hedging interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's exposure to change in interest rate is mainly attributable to its
bank balances which is considered not significant to the Group.

(iii) ~ Other price risk

The Group's unlisted AFS equity investments are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
price risk in relation to these financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks at the reporting date.

DRMEGRA
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ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If the business enterprise value of the underlying equity securities has been
5% (2016: 5%) higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
investment revaluation reserve at 31st December, 2017 would have
increased/decreased by HK$2,465,000 (2016: HK$2,357,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which would cause a
financial loss due to the failure to perform or discharge an obligation by the
counterparties or debtors arises from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade debtors, other
receivables, amounts due from associates, non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of over three months and cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group has concentration of credit risk
in respect of amounts due from associates as disclosed in note 28. The
management closely monitors the repayment status of associates, financial
results and position of its associates, and considered that the credit risk is
low. The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The amounts of debtors presented in the statements of financial position
are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group is responsible for the
determination of credit limits and credit approvals, and other monitoring
procedures are carried out to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of over
three months and cash and cash equivalents are limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit standing.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the operations of the Group, and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade creditors and accrued
operating expenses and amounts due to associates) are repayable on
demand.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

DEREEGRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(d)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2017

—Zz—tf
2017
£—1R -t ] e ] st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FRTT FRET FET FETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AHESRERE Available-for-sale investments

— I E AR AR — Unlisted equity securities - - 38,798 38,798
— I RS EREE — Unlisted club debentures - 10,500 - 10,500
- 10,500 38,798 49,298

REZZE—RE+ZA=+—HAZRREBELH Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2016

T —REF

2016
E—H F_H BE= HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FEr FET FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AfHESRERE Available-for-sale investments

— I E AR AR — Unlisted equity securities - - 37,295 37,295
— I RS EREE — Unlisted club debentures - 9,851 - 9,851
— 9,851 37,295 47,146

REAFERN  WEBEE—HK F_R/RE=F2
RIRY AR -

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

TRELTAEERESREENAALBEME  The following table gives information about how the fair values of these

BEFERNBERGDREREZH) °

financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used.)

+=RA=t+—HZoREE

Fair value as at

31st December, LRBERY FERDRIESH
SMEE —e—+tF —E—RF Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 2017 2016 hierarchy and key inputs
FRET 8T
HK$°000 HK$'000
DERAMEHEREZ 10,500 9,851 F_Hh S2E_FmHERMET

JE_E TR AL SR fEREE
Unlisted club debentures classified
as available-for-sale investments

DER/AEHERE 2
FE ETRARE S

Unlisted equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments

Level 2 Determined by reference to second
hand market value

38,798 37,295 F= BEEIEZHA:

Level 3 ()X
Ol GER
(TS BLAES - &
(V)P EITH=

Asset-based approach.
The key inputs are:
(i) Term yield;
(i) Reversionary yield;
(iii) Market rent of individual unit;
and

(iv) Minority discount rate

DEREEGRAR
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R MGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE - FE—fFEF - F=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
30. R T E @) 30. Financial Instruments (continued)
(0 &MIAZARMBENEGE) (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)
FoRLHEEL R EEHNENER Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets
REE
AHEREE
JELHRFEF
Unlisted equity
securities
classified as
available-for-sale
investment
FET
HK$000
R-ZE—X~F—H—H As at st January, 2016 35,863
AERAABEWES Unrealised fair value gain 1,432
RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—H As at 31st December, 2016 37,295
AERARBERSR Unrealised fair value gain 1,503
RZE—tF+=—A=+—H As at 31st December, 2017 38,798

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED




R MBEERME(E)
BZE—F—+Ff-A=+—HIUIFE
. SR THE)

(o &MIAZARRENEE)
FoREMEEL R EENEIEE (&)

AEFETRAEFELFZARBERARIABRDBET
HHESREEZAABED T ARG BRERE
B ERERA o

EERR - BEERAIASREMBHRRTNE
MEELERABBNEREERERAABEKREK
ViEE

B &R ) S R E RS HIRR

TRFAAEBEREBEZDNAERS - B
RehRefd RELIDELNAGRRS
MEFIARKRESRESEREGRERERERT
DERBERBRERENEE -

—tE&FF 5K Annual Report 2017 145

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

30. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets (continued)

The unrealised fair value gain above under unlisted equity securities is
included in change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

31. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing
Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group'’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BEE

Dividend payable

FET

HK3'000

RZE—+F—HA—H At Tst January, 2017 -
% 8.5 Dividend declared 621,212
BERLRS Financing cash flows (621,212)

R_E—tF+-A=+—H

At 31st December, 2017 -

DRMEGRA
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32. REIFFIRR MR

(a) ZLFMBIRRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

32. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company

(@) Company’s statement of Financial Position

—Z=—tF —E—R
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
ERENEE Non-current assets
M - B R Property, plant and equipment 114 802
S IEYNGIP - 323 Investments in subsidiaries 1,914 1914
i S)EEINEISE R Amounts due from subsidiaries 559,182 243,758
AL EemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 10,500 9,850
571,710 256,324
mENRE Current assets
FEMRRIA - TANERR - 1’RE Kk Debtors, prepayments, deposits and
H b pEUGRIE other receivables 2,368 1,885
AIER[BIFT1S 354 Income tax recoverable - 393
RN ER=EASE 2 Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
T BATF R of over three months 73,323 151,076
ReRkAEEEB Cash and cash equivalents 426,316 776,265
502,007 929,619
HEE Total assets 1,073,717 1,185,943
#a EQUITY
[N Share capital 681,899 681,899
] Reserves 349,966 387,141
1,031,865 1,069,040
a8 LIABILITIES
BB A Current liabilities
FERE K FERTE A Creditors and accruals 4,094 4,785
FERTERISHL Tax payable 886 -
FET T A BIBR 3K Amounts due to subsidiaries 36,872 112,118
HERE Total liabilities 41,852 116,903
HESRAR Total equity and liabilities 1,073,717 1,185,943

RAPBRARER-_T-NF=ATHOAKE
ERRBNERER  YHTIEERKREE

FRiE
Patrick Lee Seng Wei

Director

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

are signed on its behalf by:

BRib
Edwin Lo King Yau
BE

Director

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14th March, 2018 and
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REMBHRMMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE - FE—fFEF - F=F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017
32. NAlB AR R K GEE (8) 32. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company (continued)

(b) LFEZBER (b) Movement in the Company’s reserves
BRELGEE wEaH o]
Investment
revaluation Retained
reserve profits Total
FET TFET T
HK3'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
R-ZT—XF—HA—H At 1st January, 2016 4,706 558,534 563,240
FEMm A LA E R Profit and total comprehensive income (451) 17,254 16,803
for the year
SXNEBR=ZE—AFRE Dividends relating to 2015 (Note 13) - (186,364) (186,364)
(Hat13)
it B8 (et 22) Repurchases of shares (Note 22) - (6,538) (6,538)
R-ZE—XF+=-A=+—H At31st December, 2016 4,255 382,886 387,141
F R M R a2 e Profit and total comprehensive income 649 586,119 586,768
for the year
XNEB T —RFRE Dividend relating to 2016 (Note 13) - (310,606) (310,606)
(Ktit13)
XNEB=T—tFRE Dividend relating to 2017 (Note 13) - (310,606) (310,606)
(Hyat13)
A&7 B8 (477#22) Repurchases of shares (Note 22) - (2,731) (2,731)
R_Z—tF+=-A=+—H8 At31st December, 2017 4,904 345,062 349,966

DEREEGRAR
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33, EBHBARRBERAFIE

BREBEHRBI  RRARNR-T—EFR TR
Frt-A=T—"HEFELENTIENBRARF

BT

(a) FEMEBXT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2017

and 2016, which operate in Hong Kong except otherwise indicated, are as

follows:

(a) Principal subsidiaries

FilsREE S
Percentage of
attributable equity
BELE
B, st BRITRS MERFHR E&RR
Place of Particular of directly #KEHH

&1 Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the FE¥¥
Name establishment paid up registered capital  Company Group  Principal activities
ERUBERAR &R 1,000/ % #%,/10,000/ 7T 100 100 BiF@E
AsiaSec Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/ Financing

HK$10,000
DENEERERAT B 300,0008% 3@,/ = 100 #xER
AsiaSec Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 300,000 7T Property management

300,000 Ordinary shares/

HK$300,000
REREERAR Bk AREER 2B = 100 #%RE
Citigrand Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$ 2 Property investment
A (1B BRAR G AREBR2ETT 100 100 BARR
Dan Form (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
A (B8) BRAT BE 1,000,0008% % @,/ 100 100 RAEK
Dan Form (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T Investment holding

1,000,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,000,000

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

33 TENB AT MBZLATFFIE 33, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates
(&) (continued)
(a) EEMBAF(E) (a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)
FilsREESLL
Percentage of
attributable equity
HELT
3 0 AT BRITRE MERFES E&RR
Place of Particular of directly *KEHS
&1 Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the TEX¥%
Name establishment paid up registered capital  Company Group Principal activities
Dawna Range Company Limited BB ML IR 20T - 100 BELER
Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Investment holding
ERMEERERAA BB 1,0008% & 3#H%,10,0008 T - 100 #EER
Diamond Property Management Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/ Property management
Company Limited HK$10,000
BRARRA B 10,0008 %% /10,0008 7T = 100 MERE
Harcape Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary shares/ Property investment
HK$10,000
BEREBRAE BA 1,010,000 & &R,/ = 100 RERR
Keen Safe Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,010,000/ 7T Investment holding
1,010,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,010,000
REREARAA HRAERES 1RERR1ET = 100 #MERE
Oriental Dragon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
BEREX (HR) ARAF BE 60,000,000 &R,/ = 100 REER
Smart Golf (International) Hong Kong 60,000,000/ 7 Investment holding
Company Limited 60,000,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$60,000,000

DRMEGRA
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33. TEWMB AR REERRFRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(#8)

(a) FEMBLT(E)

(continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)

FilsREESLL
Percentage of
attributable equity
HELT
3 0 AT BRITRE MERFES E&HA
Place of Particular of directly *KEHS

&1 Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the TEX¥%
Name establishment paid up registered capital  Company Group Principal activities
AERRARAT B ARE R 2T = 100 #%RE
Top Power Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
REEHERRAF RBHTHS 1RERRET = 100 #%RE
Winshine Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
URREBRAR B 1RERR VBT = 100 #%RE
Asia Empire Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
RERREBRAR B 1RERR VBT = 100 #%RE
Cold Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
HBREBRAR B 1RERR VBT = 100 #%RE
Asiawell Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
BIEREBRAR B 1RERR VBT = 100 #%RE
Wide Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment

FHEREERBRAOA BE 2REER 208 = 100 #%RE
AsiaSec Project Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Property investment
BNENERAR RBHTHS 1RERERET = 100 #%RE
Man Lee Offshore Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment

#: R-B—tFT-A=t—8  RENEARE
257

L

AIEES

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED

Note: None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities as at 31st December,

2017.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(continued)

(b) Principal associates

Fr{&BRER St
Percentage of attributable
equity
::k: /N
BESH
EEf, I directly FREER

£ Place of held by the held by the FEX¥H
Name incorporation Company Group Principal activities
I RBEEFIERERR QR R fE = 294 WEERE
Beijing Jing Yuan Property Mainland China Property development

Development Company

Limited
TEERERRAF B = 50 REEMR
Ho Pok Investment Company Hong Kong Investment holding

Limited
EEEFARAA e = 50 WEIRE
Kin Tong Land Investment Hong Kong Property investment

Company Limited
Zeta Estates Limited BB — 3333 WMEREREMERE

Hong Kong Property development and

Property investment

DEREEGRAR
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KEMEEHINE SUMMARY OF THE GROUP'S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
—2—tF —T—X —E-hF —ZTNF —ET—=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET FET
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wzs Revenue 60,004 55,493 50,759 49,745 47,505
SRS T Operating profit 83,552 107,931 76,507 45,335 69,367
NI E Share of results of
associates 99,051 (30,995) 132,062 209,300 175,672
R 5 AT A Profit before income tax 182,603 76,936 208,569 254,635 245,039
FRfS Bt i Income tax expenses (13,438) (15,174) (12,851) (7,432) (10,042)
REE @A Profit for the year 169,165 61,762 195,718 247,203 234,997
FEBRN Attributable to:
% R R 2 Equity holders 169,165 61,762 195,718 247,203 234,997
Bl JBN BN JENL JBA
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
s eabil Earnings per share 13.62 4.97 15.69 19.82 18.84
BEE Total assets 4,894,582 5,405,183 5,398,618 5,204,157 4,940,649
St Total liabilities (191,185) (314,853) (178,960) (161,141) (150,627)
BEFE Net assets 4,703,397 5,090,330 5,219,658 5,043,016 4,790,022

ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
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